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SHETH RELD ARPORT

June 9, 2014
To the Members of the Board, and Citizens of Fort Wayne and Allen County:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Fort Wayne-Allen County
Airport Ruthority, a component unit of Allen County, Indiana (the Authority),
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 is submitted with this letter. This
report was prepared by the Authority’'s financial staff.

The financlial statements, note disclosures, and other information are the
representations of management. Conseguently, management assumes full
responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained
in this report based upon a comprehensive framework of internal contrcl that has
been established for this purpose. Internal control is designed to provide
reasocnable, but not absclute, assurance that the financial statements are free
of material misstatements. Reasonable assurance recocgnizes that the cost of
internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits of such control.

Crowe Horwath LLP, Certified Public Accountanits, have issued an ungualified
opinion on the Authority’'s financial statements for the year ended Decemker 31,
2013. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial
section on pages 12 and 13 of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A} can be found immediztely following
the report of independent auditors in the financial section of this report. The
MD&A includes financial highlights, overview of the financial statements,
condensed financial information and analysis, and capital asset and long-term
debt activity. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read
in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government — The Authority is an Indiana Municipal Corporatiocn
established July 1, 1985 under authority granted by Indiana Statute (IC 8-22-3-
1). As detailed in the statute, the Authority was established for the general
purpose of acquiring, maintaining, operating, and financing airports in and
bordering on Allen County, Indiana. The Authority is empowered to, among other
things, issue general cobligation and revenue bonds and levy taxes in accordance
with statutory provisions. The Authority manages an ailrport system in Allen
County, Indiana composed of Fort Wayne International Airport, a non-hub primary
commercial service airport, located in southwest Allen County, and Smith Field
Airport, a general aviation airport, located in the north central part of the
county.



The Authority's Board consists of six members. Three are appointed by the Mayor
of the City of Fort Wayne and three are appointed by the Allen County
Commissioners. The appointments are non-aunthoritative in nature. That is,
there is no continuing linkage between the appointing authority and the board
member. Board members cannot be removed without cause, and Indiana law provides
an impeachment procedure to be utilized in the event that there is reasonable
cause for remcoval of a board member.

The Allen County Council adopts the Authority’s annual budget and the tax levy
te support it. The annual budget of the Authority is prepared by the staff and
approved by the Board before it is sent to the Allen County Council for
adoption. After it is adopted by the Allen County Council, the budget is
reviewed and approved by the State Department of Local Government Finance.

Also, issuance of general obligation bonds must ke approved by the County
Ccuncil and revenue bonds must be approved by the County Commissioners.

Since the Authority’s budget and issuance of bonds must be approved by Allen
County officials, it is fiscally dependent on Allen County. In addition, since
Allen County is ultimately respcnsible to levy a backup tax levy to pay the debt
service on the Authority’s 2004 Bonds if the Authority is unable to do so, the
Authority imposes a financial burden on Allen County. Therefore, the Authority
is considered a component unit of Allen County, Indiana, under the criteria set
forth by the Government Accounting Standards Board. These criteria, as they
speclifically apply to the Authority, are detailed on pages 27 and 28 of the
notes to the financial statements.

The Authority’s component units, the Fort Wayne International Airport Building
Corporation (FWIABC) and the Fort Wayne International Airport Air Trade Center
Building Corporation (FWIAATCBC), are autoncmous quasi-governmental units.,
Although FWIAEBC and FWIAATCBC are legally separate from the Authority, they are
reported as if they were part of the Authority because their sole purpose is to
finance construction projects for the Authority. Additional information on
these component units can be found in the notes to the financial statements on
pages 28 and 29.

Budgetary contrel is maintained at the major expense category level by the
encumbrance of purchase orders against avallable legally adopted appropriations.
Open purchase orders or encumbrances at the end of the fiscal year are
automatically added to the subseguent yesar's budget under state law. For budget
purposes, expenses are recognized in the year encumbered. For financial
statement purposes, expenses are recognized when incurred.

Local Ecomomy — During 2013, unemployment in the Fort Wayne Metropolitan
Statistical Area (MSA) (Allen, Wells, and Whitley counties} averaged 7.2 (non-
seasonally adjusted) percent, after beginning the year at 8.6 percent in
January. The rate declined steadily throughout the year ending at the lowest
rate of 5.9 percent in December.




According to the Community Research Institute in its Targeted Industry and
Manufacturing Business Dynamics Report 2013 prepared for the Northeast Indiana
Regional Partnership, “Since the end of the Great Recession in 2010, job growth
in Northeast Indiana ({(Adams, Allen, DeKalb, Huntington, LaGrange, Noble,
Steuben, Wabash, Wells, and Whitley counties) has averaged approximately ¢,200
jobs esach of the past three years. Although manufacturing was a driver of much
of this growth, job increase in manufacturing has slowed over the last three
years.” According to the report, “manufacturing increases accounted for almost
60 percent of all employment gains in 2011 and less than 40 percent of those
gains in 2013.7 This is an indication of the growing diversity within the local
economy -

The 10 counties within the Northeast Indiana region referred to above are all
within the Fort Wayne International Airport catchment area. The activity at
Fort Wayne Internaticnal Airport continues to reflect improvements in the local
economy as the number of passenger enplanements increased 5.0 percent from
284,465 in 2012 to 298,661 in 2013. This is the fourth consecutive year of
enplanement increases. The expectations are that the level of enplanements will
continue to rise during 2014. The airlines’ cost per enplaned passenger
decreased from $9%.40C in 2012 to $8.39 in 2013. This decrease was caused by both
keeping airline costs flat and continuing to use additional passenger facility
charges to pay debt service, thereby reducing the terminal rental rate for the
airlines. The Authority continues to strengthen its marketing efforts to retain
existing and attract new airline service to the Alrport. During the last
guarter of 2013, the Autherity was successful in obtaining new alr service to
Phoenix, Arizona. This new service offers leisure travelers and cothers a new
vacation destination.

The local economy is well diversified with several major industries located
within Allen County and the Fort Wayne region: health care, defense/aerospace
engineering, financial services, autcmotive manufacturing, luggage and handbag
manufacturing, and educational institutions of higher learning.

The schedule on page 83 of this repcrt details additional information regarding
diversity in the local economy, as the area is nct dependent on the fortunes of
a single employer. The ten largest employers in Allen County make up only 15.1
percent of total employment. On page 70, it caen be discerned that lccal
government is not dependent on a single taxpayer or group of taxpayers for its
revenue base. The top ten taxpayers in Allen County provide only 9.1 percent of
taxable assessed valuaticn. Anocther positive development is that the number of
building permits issued by the Allen County Building department for single-
family and duplex residential building construction increased from 705 in 2012
to 845 in 2013. This is the largest number of building permits issued since
2007.

Long-term Financial Planning — The Authority has included in its capital
improvement plan provisions to upgrade facilities at Smith Field, the
Aunthority’s general aviation airport, and Fort Wayne Internatiocnal. The
Autherity anticipates financing these capital improvements with a variety of



funding mechanisms including passenger and customer facility charges, federal
and state grants, cumulative building tax revenues, and local airport revenues.
Included in the capital improvement plan are provisions to make substantial
improvements to the infrastructure and facilities at Smith Field: construct
common use and terminal building ramps; construct & new hangar access road;
upgrade new taxilane and construct new taxiways; construct vehicular parking lot
expansion; construct new T-hangars; storm water and other improvements; acquire
land for runway extensions; and complete additional infrastructure and building
improvements. These substantial improvements are needed for safety reasons and
also Lo increase the attractiveness and utilization of Smith Field Airport. The
Authority will finance most of the projects above with federal and state grants.

At Fort Wayne Internmational, the Authority plans to replace several <et bridges;
purchase several snow removal eguipment units; reconstruct Runway 14-32;
reconstruct Runway 5-23 and Taxiway C; construct Runway 5-23 shoulders;
construct a new access read to general aviation facilities; relocate and
reconstruct the car rental parking lot; and modernize the passenger terminal.
Rehabllitating and replacing Jjet bridges will improve passenger safety and
convenience. Reconstructing the runways and taxiways will enhance safety on the
airfield. Constructing the new access road will allow tenants to have easier
access to west side facilities. Renovating the terminal will give the Authority
better utilization of its current space, sclve retail space needs and improve
the terminal’s traffic flow. The Authority plans to maximirze the use of federal
and state grants from the Airport Improvement Program for airfield projects; use
passenger facility charges to finance eligible terminzgl projects and airfield
equipment purchases; and use customer facility charges to relocate and
reconstruct the car rental parking lot.

Major Initiatives — The Authority has completed the purchase of several tracts
of land just west of the airport to construct a new road to imprecve access to
general aviation facilities. The Authority received federal and state grants to
pay almost 92.5 percent of the construction costs for this roadway. In
addition, the Authority will relocate its fixed based operations (FBO) building
to the west side of the Airport during 2015. This will allow future expansion
of the passenger Terminal to the area currently occupied by the FBO building.
The new rcad will provide direct access to this new FBO building. In addition,
the Authority 1s on a marketing campalgn to improve air service at Fort Wayne
International. The Authority is seeking new air service to the East and
Northeast to provide better service for Fort Wayne and surrounding communities.
The Authority received a Small Community Air Service Development grant from the
Department of Transportation to assist in obtaining new nonstop eastbound air
service to a major connecting hub. The $£600,000 grant requires participation
with matching funds from the local community. The Ruthority has received
commitments from members of the local community to provide the required matching
funds. We anticipate cbtaining the new air service during the last half of
2014. The Authority is also reaching out to airlines to increase their seat
capacities at Fort Wayne International.



Awards and Acknowledgements — The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Fort Wayne-Allen County Alrport
Authority for its CAFR fer the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012. This was
the twenty-fourth {1989 - 2012) consecutive year that the Authority has achieved
this prestigious award: In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government must publish an easily readable and efficiently oxrganized CAFR. This
report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
that our current CAFR continues to conform to the Certificate of Achlevement
Program’s reguirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for ancther certificate.

Without the strong commitment of the Autheority Beard to the highest standarxds of
finarcial reporting, disclosure, and professicnalism, this report would not have
been possible. Our sincerest appreciation ia expressed to all of you. The
preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient
and dedicated services of the accounting staff, Ssbrina P. Driver and Janice R.
Lewis. We would like to express our appreciatiocn to the accounting staff, and
others whe assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. We
acknowledge Crowe Horwath LLP, Independent Auditor; Tera Klutz, Allen County
auditor; and Rebecca D. Ross, Property Manager, Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport
Authority.

Respectfully submitted,
FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

sl
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Scott D. Hinderman, A.A.E.
Executive Director of Airports

Robin Strasser, CPA
Director of Administration and Finance

Ronnie C. Portis, CPA
Controller/Treasurer
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Indepandent Member Crowe Horwath international

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Beard of Directors
Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport Authority
Fort Wayne, Indiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport Authority (the
“Authority”), a component unit of Allen County, Indiana, which comprise the statement of net position as of
December 31, 2013, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position of
the Authority as of December 31, 2013, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 through 21 and the Schedules of Funding Progress for the Employees
Retirement Plan and Retiree Healthcare Plan on pages 50 through 51 be presented to supplement the financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures fo the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s financial statements. The Combining Schedules from pages 54 through 58, Other
Supplementary Information from pages 60 through 63, and the Introductory and Statistical Sections from pages 1
through 11 and pages 66 through 92 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part
of the financial statements.

The Combining Schedules and Other Supplementary Information are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the Combining Schedules and Other Supplementary Information are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Cno«uc H‘b-u.r,’h. LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Wayne, Indiana
June 2, 2014




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The management of the Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport Authority (the
Authority) provides the following narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities of the Authority for the year ended December 31, 2013.
Please read it in conjunction with the letter of transmittal tc the Authority

Board, located on pages 3 through 7.

Financial Highlights

The Authority’s net position increased approximately $3.1 million as a result
of this year’s operations. The restricted compenent of net position

increased approximately $1.3 million cor 14.2 percent,

Current assets increased approximately $2.2 millicn due to & substantial

reduction in capital asset purchases compared to 201Z2.

Current liabilities decreased $604,276 due primarily toc & reduction in the
current portion of long-term debt.

The Authority’s bends and other long-term liabilities decreased by $2.6
million. This was due primarily to the normal retirement of long-term debt

as bond maturities came due.

Capital contributions increased $439,103 or 16.0 percent due to increases in

the amount of federal and state grants recelved.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Authority’s financial report consists of three financial statements: the
Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. The financial statements are
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB}. The reporting entity consists of the Authority and
its component units: the Fort Wayne Internatiocnal Airport Building
Corporation (FWIABC} and the Fort Wayne Internaticnal Airport Rir Trade
Center Building Corporation (FWIAATCBC). The Authority and its relationship
with its component units are more fully described in the notes to the
financial statements. The Authority, the FWIABC and the FWIAATCBC are
structured as a single enterprise fund. Revenues are recognized when earned,
and expenses are recognized when incurred. Capital expenditures are
capitalized as assets and (except for land, land improvements and
construction in progress) are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

14



Statement of Net Position - This Statement presents informaticn on the
Authority’'s assets, deferred cutflows of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflows of rescurces, and net position. WNet position represents the
difference amecng all other elements in the Statement. Net position is
displayed in three components: net investment in capital assets; restricted:
and unrestricted. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is

improving or deteriorating.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - This is the
operating statement for the Authoriiy. Revenues and expenses are categorized
as elther operating or non-operating based upon GASB Statements 33 and 34.

On this statement, property and cther taxes, and passenger and customer
facility charges are reported as non-operating revenues; and capital grants
are reported as capital contributicns.

Statement of Cash Flows - This Statement is used tc report the classification
of cash receipts and payments according to whether they stem from operating,
noncapital financing, capital and related financing, or investing activities.
The Authority reports cash flows from operating activities using the direct
method, as required by GASB Statement 34. Using the direct method, the
Authority reports cash flows from operating activities directly by showing
major classes of operating cash receipts and payments (for example, receipts
from customers, payments to suppliers, payments to employees, etc.) A
recenciliation of operating income to net cash flow from operating activities
is also reguired, and is located on the second page of this statement.

Notes to Financial Statements - The Notes provide additional information that
is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the Authority’s
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on
pages 27 through 47 of this report.

Other Information - In addition te the basic financial statements and
accompanying notes, this report also presents required supplementary
information concerning the Authority’s progress in funding its cbligation to
provide pension benefits to i1ts employees, and funding progress for its
retiree healthcare plan. Required supplementary information can be found on
pages 50 and 51 of this report.

Condensed Financial Information

Net Position - The Authority's net position increased $3,142,280 or 2.9
percent from 2012 to 2013. The growth in net position is attributed to
increases in all components of net position: net investment in capital assets

increased approximately $1.7 million; restricted net positicn increased

15




approximately $1.3 million; and unrestricted net peosition increased $169,562.
Net investment in capital assets increased due to the normal retirement of
long-term debt as bond maturities came due. Restricted net position
increased primarily due to increases in federal and state grants receidvable,
and increases in cumulative building cash and investments. Unrestricted net
position increased due to increases in cash and investments that more than
offset increases in acccunts payabkle and advance rent. The increase in net
position indicates that the Authority’s financial position lmproved from
2012. As noted previcusly, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Authority is

improving or deteriorating.

Current assets increased approximately $2.2 million or 10.8 percent due to a
reduction in the use of cash and investments to purchase capital assets.
During 2012, the Authority used approximately $3.9 million in cash to
purchase land for the construction of a new roadway to the west side of the
Airport. The Authority also used approximately $4.5 million to purchase or

to construct other capital assets.

Current liabilities decreased $604,276 or 11.2 percent due to a reducticn in
the current portion of long-term debt. This reduction in the current portion
of long-term debt was due to the retirement of the Authority’s 2004 bonds on
January 1, 2014. The reduction in the current portion of long-term debt more

than offset increases in accounts payable and advance rent.

Deferred outflows of resources decreased 26.6 percent due to the amortization
of deferred amount on refunding of the 2004 and 2011 bonds. This

amortization is included in interest expense.

The Authority’s net investment in capital assets {e.g., land, buildings and
improvements, infrastructure items, and equipment) is the larcest component
(77.9 percent) of net position. These capital assets are used to provide
services to customers. Consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Authority’s investment in its capital assets
is reported net of related debt and deferred outflows of rescurces, it should
be noted that the resources required to repay this debt must be provided
annually from other sources such as operating and nonoperating revenues,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be liguidated to pay these

liabilities.

In addition, 2.2 percent of the Authority’s net position represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The
restricted balances represent bond reserves that are subject to external
restrictions on how they can be used under bond covenants; debt service cash,
restricted by state law, that can only be used to pay debt service on the
2011 bonds; passenger facility charges that are restricted by Federal

16



regulations; cumulative building cash and investments that are restricted by
State law; and security deposits held for tenants and other users of Airport
The remaining balance (12.9 percent) of 514,266,614 is the
unrestricted component of net position, which may be used to meet the

facilities.

Authority’s ongoing obligation to i1ts citizens, customers, and creditors

within FAA operating guidelines.
A summary of the Authority’s 2013 net position compared to 2012 follows:

Authority’s Net Position

Tncrease Fercent
2013 2012 {Decrease) Change
Current assets. . . . . . . 5 22,270,316 $20,095,404 52,174,912 10.8%
Other noncurrent assets. 5,850,653 6,263,382 (312,729) (5.0
Capital assets (net) . . . . . 98,436,763 100,234,798 {1,798,035) (1.8)
Total assets. . . 126,657,732 126,583,584 64,148 0
Deferred outflows of resources. 92,311 125,747 (33,436} (26.6)
Total assets and
deferred outflows of resources. 126,750,043 126,719,331 30,712 0.0
Current liabilities 4,808,472 5,412,748 (604,276} (11.2)
Noncurrent liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,438,818 1,381,110 57,708 4.2
Bonds and other long-term debt 9,525,000 12,090,000 (2,565,000) (21.2)
Total liabilities 15,772,230 18,883,858 (3,111,568} {16.5)
Net position:
Net investment in capital
assets. . . . 86,439,074 84,742,931 1,696,143 2.
Restricted 10,272,065 8,995,490 1,276,575 14.2
Unrestricted 14,266,614 14,087,052 169,562 1.2
Total net position. $110,977,753 5107,835,473 $3,142,280 2.9

Changes in Net Position - Operating revenues increased $366,804 (or 3.8
percent} from 2012 to 2013.
grounds revenue accounted for most of the operating revenue increase due to
The Airfield

($143,318 increase) accounted for some of the increase due to revenues from

An increase (12.3 percent) in buildings and

new lease agreements with tenants in the Air Trade Center.

the temporary increase in air cargo activity during September, November and
December 2013,
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Federal operating grant revenues decreased $84,766. The Authority received a
Law Enforcement Cfficer Relmbursement grant from the U.S. Department of
Homeland Security in 2012. The Authority did not receive this grant in 2013.

Reliever airport expenses increased approximately $108%,000, or 18.9 percent,
due to various increases in supplies, materials and eguipment: Repair parts
increased $6,500; signage for the airfield and renovated fixed base
operations (FBO) building increased $11,000; computer eguipment and supplies
increased $12,00C; small furnishings, artwork and equipment feor the FBO
building increased 310,500; and fuel and oil suppllies for resale increased
$28,500. 1In addition, other services and charges, including a hangar
assessment for building code compliance and broker commissions, accounted for

the remaining increase.

Administrative operating expenses increased approximately $333,000, or 13.6
percent, due to an approximate $195,000 increase in personal service expenses
for filling positions that had been vacant in 2012, In addition, increases
in other services and charges accounted for the remaining increase.

Capital contributions increased 16.0 percent due to increases in the amount

of federal and state grants received.
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A summary of the Authority’s 2013 changes in net position compared to 2012

follows below.

Authority’s Changes in Net Position

Increase Percent
2013 2012 {Decrease) Change
Operating revenues:
Airfield. . . . . . . . . . $ 1,618,892 1,475,574 $ 143,318 9.7%
Buildings and grounds 2,097,557 1,867,646 229,911 12.3
Terminal. 2,944,523 3,056,045 (111,122) (3.6)
Parking . . . . . . . . . . 2,829,131 2,695,420 133,711 5.0
Reliever airport. . . . . . 435,806 464,820 (29,014} (6.2)
Total operating revenues. . . 9,926,309 2,559,505 366,804 3.8
Nonoperating revenues:
Property and other taxes. . 6,674,720 6,713,816 {39,086) {0.6)
Federal operating grant . . —— B4,766 (84,766) (100.0}
Passenger facility charges. 1,215,576 1,138,258 77,318 6.8
Custcomer facility charges 244,493 210,792 33,701 16.0
Interest income 76,289 Q4,787 (18,498) (19.5)
Gain on capital asset
disposal . . . . . . . . 9,811 20,395 {10,584) (51.%)
Net nonoperating revenues 8,220,889 8,262,814 (41,925) (0.5)
Total revenues. 18,147,198 17,822,319 324,879 1.8
Operating expenses:
Airfield. 3,026,447 2,809,812 116,635 4.0
Buildings and grounds 1,055,449 1,121,225 (65,776) (5.9)
Terminal. 1,502,978 1,620,862 {117,884) (7.3)
Parking . 989,986 1,009,371 {12,383) (1.9)
Reliever airport. 688,311 578,843 109,468 18.9
Administration. 2,771,753 2,438,887 332,766 13.6
Depreciation. 7,551,117 7,559,693 {8,576} (0.1)
Total Operating expenses. . . 17,586,041 17,238,793 347,248 2.0
Nonoperating expenses 607,545 731,133 (123,588) (16.9)
Total expenses. 18,193,586 17,969,926 223,660 1.2
Loss before
capital contributions (46, 388) (147,607 101,218 (68.6)
Capital contributions 3,188,668 2,749,565 438,103 16.0
Increase in net position. 3,142,280 2,601,958 540,322 20.8
Total net position, beginning 107,835,473 105,233,515 2,601,958 2.5
Total net position, ending. 5110,977,753 5107,835,473 $3,142,280 2.9
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The following charts show the major sources and percentages of operating

revenues and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013:

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

R:?liever Airfield Deprec Airfield Buildings
alrpoort\ 16.31% 42.94% 17.21% &
_ 4.39% ) grounds
Parking

28.50%

" Buildings

. & " Reliever Parking
Terminal grounds Admin. airport g g39,
29.67% 21.13% 15.76% 3.91%

Capital Asset Activity

During 2013, the Authority expended approximately $5.8 million for capital
improvements. The Authority completed the following projects at Fort Wayne
International: purchased the final parcel of land for roadway construction
for $478,000; and purchased 2 way digital radio systems for $260,000. In
addition, the Authority completed two projects that began in 2012 or earlier:
Perimeter fence for $2.1 million and runway guard light installation for
8615,000. Several projects, including the constructicn of a west side access
road, Terminal building electrical capacity, and overlay zoning projects were
unfinished at yearend. These projects are being financed primarily with

federal and state grants.

In addition, the Authority completed the rencvaticn of the fixed based
operations building for $234,000 and completed the installation of a fuel
farm for $323,000 at Smith Field Airport.

For additional information on capital asset activity, see note 5.

Long—-Term Debt Activity

The 2004 Airport Improvement Refunding bonds were issued by the Fort Wayne
International Airport Building Corpeoration, an Authority component unit.
These bonds are insured and have a rating by Mocdy’s of Aaa, and an
underlying rating also by Moody’s of Aa3.
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In February of 2011, the First Mortgage Federally Taxable Refunding Bonds
were issued by the Fort Wayne International Airport Air Trade Center Building
Corporaticn, a component unit of the Authority, to refund the 1998 First
Mortgage Bonds. The primary purpose of the refunding was to eliminate
certain restrictions in the bond covenant. The bonds have a rating of AA+ by
Fitch Ratings and Aa3 by Moody’s.

Bond ratings did not change during 2013. The Authority has a legal debt
limit of $85,202,752 which represents 2 percent of the adjusted value of
Allen County property. The adjusted value is one-third of the assessed value
as certified by the State Department of Local Government Finance. Since the
Authority has no general obligation debt outstanding, the legal debt margin
is also $85,202,752 as of December 31, 2013. Bonds issued by a building
corporation do not count against the legal debt limit. As a result, the
Autherity has no debt limitations that will affect the financing of planned
facilities or services.

For additional information on bonds and other long-term debt, see note 9.

Currently Known Facts

The Authority’s property tax rates include a debt service levy in additiocn to
the operating and cumulative bullding fund. In 2014, the cperating, debt
service and cumulative building tax rates are .0293, .0151, and .0033,
respectively. The rates are per $100 of assessed value and will be applied
on an assessed value of $12,913,262,282. These rates compare to the 2013
rates for operating, debt service and cumulative building of .0289%, .0149 and
.0033, respectively,.

Reguests for Information

This financlal report is designed to provide the Authority’s taxpayers,
citizens, investors, creditors and customers with a general overview of the
Authority’'s finances, and to show the Authority's accountability for the
funds it receives and expends. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Director of Administration and Finance, 3801 W.
Ferguson Road, Suite 208, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46809-3194.

21




FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY ATRPORT AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2013

ASSETS Totals
CURRENT ASSETS:
Unrestricted assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS-NOE 2. ..c.c.uieeuerrcnrsesesesersessssesssnssenssssssssssenssremssneresennesnnees 9 1,871,336

TNIVESHMENIS-TI0E Ziurriiereerinrrrasirerrensssirrer srssssensctves sosesesosemsoresesstenmessancsebmbessbsss obtastessssiansrassnnan 8,930,000
Accounts receivable, Nt 0F AllOWANCE......ciceniieerinrs i s et s ss s ae e emne e o 124,446
TUTIDIHE TEVEIIIE ..t eeevvivereisseteeeeseeecaemeestereaesnseessaeenn st smbbaesasa e s st e s e s re e presns s annbee brds venemnssbnnssseas 107,928
Property tax receivables, net of allowance--note 1.t s 54,559
Other 1ECETVADIES. ... ceeeeve et bttt ves e e e sres s ren s e ranresr e 24,987
Inventory—note 4. . ..c.coviiienviiiniiinnin 164,305
PIEDAIE JLEINIS. vvvvrnrrremerreemeeeeneseaeresse st s e erem s st s bbbt nt b bbb a0 RS R RS bR R SR SR PR B b PR PRt srs b e bnm e n st 265,660

Total unrestricted ASSES.......cccvive i ire s rtre s rresrerssrrs e s e ers sy aes sh s sbe e ne s saes seres sas s sben b hbn 17,543,221

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents-inchuding $1,088,323 held by trustee~-notes 2 and 3........ccecovnrnnes 2,849,250
Ivestments—nOtES 2 AN Buiii i rerrerre s erser s svssseseessseenes st eansen s seesnrenns be i sea e 260,024
Passenger facility charge receivable.....ccoo i 120,375

Federal and state grants receivable.......vorcvceernesernreenesreenees 1,452,370
Property tax receivables, net of allowance--note 1 28,129
OHNET TECEIVADIES. 1. vvvtrrirerrecrieseersseresteesentesaestereeaeasaessaesesmserassbeestrssans aetasanasermnnesrre e sesntrabesansss snn 16,947

TOUAL PESIFICTEA ASSOLS.....civireereierirerer et reneereessebee e abassbe st asssenneebe st s e ssss srsressretnrasensresenssraresernsseen 4,727,095
TOLAl CUITEINE ASSEIB....cceieeueiieitiisirsciireerianrssaassraeessrrasresssrsnsesbnsersrreeraneeaenssmnesenanesasmessemessbusemmissinas 22,270,316
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents-including $7,259 held by trustee—notes 2 and 3. 134,447
Investments-—notes 2 AN 3. e e e e e eae e b e e e nnna 5,809,976

Property tax receivable, net of allowance--note L. e, 6,230

Total TESTICEEE BSSELS...1iteriieeirirsiisrrrisis s seesrnssrtrsansrareraesas e nss s s e et smss e aanesra bbb sb e shav b a e bn nres 5,950,653
Capital ASSELS, TIBTI0TE Surrrereerrecrerims oot et sse e st be bt et s b e R 98,436,763

Total HLONCUITENT BSSEIS. euinvrerieieeerieesesiesmeresesmssssseassseseassasessesnssesmseermsssarssesssnsrsseneseencnemneennne 104,387,416

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred amount on pefunding Bonds........cv ot s s 92,311
Total assets and deferred outflows Of TESOUICES. .. ccivveeerirricsiir s s e esne e $ 126,750,043
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LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION Totals
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Payable from unrestricted:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC ..o eeeti et ssarerri st s e se s s saabss e boa b et e see e e see e seene st emsesereneareseaes $ 1,104,472
ACCIUEA JTADIHEIES. 1vrvevie e erere st s et ee e e ses e eem s onsn e searanesrasantes et rnena s eaee 429,906
AQVAILCE TEIE . st eeeress e niriece et sne st reecaes s seassssere s vasasesrassrasasss e st seasaeat st bbb et et ssmeemserenen 303,411
TOtAl BNTESICTIEM. ... oot et st re et ea bt sre b are e sa e raa s bne st s ben 1,837,789

Payable from restricted:

ACCOUIES PAYADIC. ... ettt et sttt es b et s bbb e e e enrens 127,188
Current portion of [ong-term debl=-110t8 Tu......curieerinesssessssecerosessonensseeeeeeeesseseseesresemsserssssessssesenn, 2,565,000
Accried inferest om ong-erm debl.. ... s st 278,495

TOLAL TESITICIEA. 11 erurecetiie et st es st e et et escas b ea s es e e eassseaeseennsseeeesanssbeseseressetemsmssesenes 2,970,683

Total current Habilities. . ..oeri et ettt eee et e s s see s e e e s nnas 4,808,472
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Net other postemployment benefits obligation-—10Le 8.....v.ivesvereirsmsseseseseesiesesseesseesseseesennns 503,584
Net pension obligation--Note T..........ooviier ittt e e eee et eree et esmnes 54,903
Accrued cOmMPENSAST BDSEICES. .verieiieeciniirrre et cceee s rser e e ssssrassess st sre b oaessamesateees 880,331
Bonds and other long-term debt, NEt—note D........ovveivversiesicsis e ssseseessesesseeseessee e seeeseeseeeees. 9,525,000
Total NONCUITENE HHADIITIES. ..vvcivecainseieireiesersteemene oo eeeseeeeseesvenssermessssrerrereesenesaeessnsessnsssnsesnnses 10,963,818
TOTAL HADIITHIES. .- .0 vvvverrreeeresreresisserriseesseesnessesssesseas b st sms shebe s eeeseemesreeasereassnensseansasasesssenses 15,772,290
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital BSS2tS. ........coerernirsnimcem et 36,439,074
Restricted for:
Deht service 2,110,167
Capital ProjectSa..imerreenenes 8,161,898
UDTESITICLEG v rtsts st s st e et caee e b v s ss s e e resersRs b s ba bbb bbb r b bt e e seemenenemre e 14,266,614
TOTAl TEL POSTEION. 1 cvstterers e sttt ee st eeeae s e rsenssestes e mes st srsmnereesrenesenanensenseeseress 110,977,753
Total liabilities and NEt POSTHIOM.. . ceriirirrrisee sttt eeceeeesreeoereesesrens sessvasmesasestesanens $ 126,750,043

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Totals
OPERATING REVENUES:
Airfield... R VTR OO OO UROUUUUUOUTURUPPSRPPUR. SRS B 1 . 3.1
Buildings and grounds 2,097,557
Termmal 2,944,923
Parking....cooeeeeereemereeer s 2,829,131
RETIEVET BITPOT  vevvs1errsessmesemneesemssesrea s mreeeststarase s b s s b s bE s sEas s bER e S bee b RaE s B AR et s d e b e R e et s era et s enbse st ts 435,806

Total OPETALIIE FEVEIILES.c..vviiir e ciieie st amsesas bt bt ads e R s e s s st e 9,926,309

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Airfield... 3,026,447
Buildings and grounds 1,055,449
Terminal 1,502,978
PATKITIE. 111 vv1s s esvet e see e re e e seas bbb bbb s s bR eR SR R e SRR eensh s e b bbbk 989,986
RelieVer 2IrPOTt.. . e st 688,311
Administration 2,771,753
DIEPEEUIALIONL 1 1 1vovrescusscnsescessrcmseermssserere st s bbb e E L b b ied b ae A b ne S R0 RS 08 4 SR SR e 7,551,117

TOtA] OPETALINE EXPEIISES. . covvu eerirriessesrerisssssssssssrrasare st sersossssssnsssnsesss s sesaseserasschssbonbsbs assbsbnsnssensssins 17,586,041
LOSS FROM OPERATTIONS.....coitieteernrirreeriaresiessseenssesteseseetsosmsaosesseassisesiassbasssssaia e sesmsssrms s svananesstsse: {7,659,732)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Property and other taxes... 6,674,720
Passenger facility Charge ........................................................................................................................ 1,215,576
Customer facility CRATEE. .ot ceeterrevetereere s s s e e resee s e sre bbb sd i b b S RS RS b PR b aA e aR e E SR e S e s e a2 244,493
TEEEIESE ATICOIME. oo ceiee e eesstes e st et assetsse e ems s e reseraseprs e ans peens seen b ee s anessae ot se s eresaras e by e R bR SRR S bR R 76,289
Interest expense... (607,545}
Gain on disposal 0fcap1ta1 assets 9.811
Net NONOPerating revenues (EXPEIISES fuuuweirsreriirssrsesiinsssessesssesssseasisesssbrs s sabas s sssans s ssssensass 7,613,344

LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS. ..o srssesnimss s s cscnins (46,388)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS: :
Federal and SHALE SIAIES. ...vecverreesseereererrenes e e bt b bbb e e R b ab s e b PR P20 0 1401 7 sE g o s e st st e anan s 3,188,668

INCREASE IN NET POSTTION...c..miiiiiiniimiiinesnss s s rrsb s sesasss sssasessss st sssssasssssss s s brasissasssinanins 3,142,230

NET POSITION:
Total net position, beginning of YEAr. ... s e s 107,835,473

Total net POSIION, GHA 0L YEAT....c.... it ittt es s sns s e s b s s e e s $ 110,977,753

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers
By T i R (R 1o ) U o ST U PSR
Payments 10 emPlOYEES. ..o it e e e e e rar e aa e aeanan
Payments of benefits on behalf of employees
Refunds and return of customer deposits

Net cash provided by operating activities,.......viveeveoriiciinnieiienns

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITY:
Receipts of property and other taxes

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts of property and other tAXes. ...t e e et ea e e,
Acquisition and constroction of capital assets
Sale 0f CapItal ASSEIS. ..oevvi ittt et e rie e e et
Principal paid on bonds and other long-term debt
Interest paid on bonds and other long-term debt
Capital Srant TECeIPES. ..vur ittt ittt et r et e r e e e r et a e e e neas
Passenger facility charge receipts
Customer facility charge receipts

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities...u....cooveeveeevreenennne
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of IVeSHIIENT SECUITLIES. iuviviiiiirr e streeie e ceeeaesssressesscaresessessessonse saesssenssaesssssnsressesseseraras

Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities
Interest received on investmentis

Net cash provided by investing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR.....coccncciiimmrierrs et s sass s essesesenss

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR
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Totals

10,124,115
(4,387,128)
(3,884,895)
(1,606,973}

(3,160}

241,959

4412.115

4,412,115

2,267,743
(5,390,482)
32,832
(3,510,000)
(659,927)
2,229,947
1,247,276
228,017

(3,554,594)
(20,000,000)
25,000,000

88,536
5,088,536
6,188,016
4,667,017

$ 10,855,033
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows-Continned
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Totals
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
1085 TTOM OPELATIONS . ¢ 1. oo eeeeee i ceie oot vt b e et e ra s b e e e et s s e s $ (7,659.732)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash used in operating activities:

F o T 110 SOOI 7,551,117

Bad debt eXPemise. . ... v e 8,522

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenuve..... ... 139,929
L1 L < VP 103,494
Accounts payable, ... (3,456)
Acerned HabilItes. ... .vuvvrioee e i aes 7,118
Net OPERB and net pension obligation............coooiiiiniin, 94,967
Net cash provided by operating activities.........oooiiiiiiiiii, b 241,959

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Capital assets included in accounts payable.............coo $ 798,524
Capital assets acquired in Jease transaction. ... 155,000
Capital contributions from federal and state grants................oiviii 958,721

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization - The Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport Authority (the Authority) is a
municipal corporation established July 1, 1985, under authority granted by Indiana
statute (1861 Acts, Chapter 283, IC 1972 19-6-2, superseded by IC 8-22-3-1). The
Authority, a component unit of Allen County; Indiana, was established for the
general purpose of acguiring, maintaining, operating, and financing airports and
landing fields in and bordering cn Allen County, Indiana, and in connection
therewith is authorirzed, among other things, to issue general ocbligation and
revenue bonds and to levy taxes in accordance with the provisions of the statute.
The Authority administers an airport system composed of Fort Wayne Internaticnal
Airport, a non~hub primary commercial service airport, and Smith Field, a general
aviation airport. The Authority has no stockholders or equity holders and all
revenues and other receipts must be disbursed in accordance with such statute.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements - The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally acceptad
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financiai
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reporting Entity - As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, these financial statements present Fort Wayne-Allen
County Alrport Authority, a compcnent unit of Allen County, Indiana, and the
compeonent unlts of the Authority: Fort Wayne International Airport Building
Corporaticon (FWIABC) and Fort Wayne International Adirport Air Trade Center
Building Corporation (FWIAATCBC).

The Ruthority's Board consists cof six members, three appointed by the Mayor of the
City of Fort Wayne, and three by the Allen County Commissicners.

Based upon the fimnancial benefit or burden relationship with Allen County in
addition to the fiscal independence or dependence criterion set forth by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) the Authority is considered a
component unit of Allen County.

In reaching the aforementioned conclusiocn, the Authority considered the following
reporting entity definition criteria:
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Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport Authority
Notes to Financial Statements—-Continued

A. TFiscal Dependency

1. The Authority's budget and the tax levy to meet it must be approved
by the Allen County Council.

2. 'The Authority may not issue general obligation bonds without the
Allen County Council's approval, nor issue revenue bonds without the

Allen County Commissioners' approval.
B. Financial Benefit or Burden Relationship

Allen County is ultimately responsible to levy a backup tax to pay
the debt service on the Authority’s 2004 Bonds if the Authority is

unable to do so.

In additicn to meeting the fiscal dependency criterion, the Authority receives a

financial benefit from Allen County in that Allen County entered into an agreement
to levy a tax to pay debt service to the Fort Wayne International Alrport Building
Corporation, if the Authority did not have sufficient revenues to pay the revenues

and was unable to levy a backup tax.

Since the Authority does not have the ability to complete the above essential
events without approval by Allen County officials, it is fiscally dependent upon
Bllen County and Allen County is financially accountable for the Authority. The
Buthority is therefore a component unit of Allen County.

The Authority's component units, FWIABC and FWIAATCBC, are autonomous quasi-
governmental units. Although FWIABC and FWIAATCRC are legally separate from the
Authority, they are reported as if they were part of the Ruthority because thelr
sole purpcse is to finance construction projects for the Authority by selling tax-
exempt bonds. These bonds are collateralized by lease agreements with the
Authority and will be retired through lease payments from the Authority. These
lease agreements constitute the imposition of a financial burden on the Authority,
and FWIABC and FWIAATCBC provide services exclusively to the Authority. Since
FWIARC and FWIAATCEC are so intertwined with the Authority, their balances and
transactions are blended with the Authority's balances and transactions. Because
these arrangements with the blended component units are essentially lease
agreements, and after eliminations have been made, there are no material activity
and no material balances remaining. Therefore, there are no separate funds

reported.

Financial information for FWIABC and FWIAATCBC can be obtained at the following

addresses:
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Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport Authority

Notes to Financial Statements-Continued

Fort Wayne Internatiocnal Airport
Building Corporation

3801 W. Ferguson Reoad, Suite 209

Fort Wayne, IN 46808

Fort Wayne International Airport Ailr

Trade Center Building Corporation
3801 W. Ferguson Road, Suite 209
Fort Wayne, IN 46809

Basis of Accounting and Reporting - The financial statements consist of a single
enterprise fund, which is accounted for using the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred.

The Authority reports revenues and expenses as operating or nonoperating.
Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services in connection with
the Authority’s ongoing operaticons. The Authority classifies revenues from
airlines, ccncessions, car rental companies, parking, and building and ground
lessees as operating revenues. All expenses relating to cperating the Authority
such as perscnnel and administrative expenses, supplies, repairs to property and
equipment, charges for professicnal and cther contractual services, utilities, and

depreclation expense on capital assets are reported as cperating expenses.

All other revenues such as revenues from grants, property and other taxes,
passenger facility charges, custcomer facility charges, and interest income are
considered nonoperating revenues. Interest expense is reported as nonoperating
expense.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the
Authority’s policy is to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted

rescurces as they are needed.

Capital lease transactions between the Authority and the FWIABC and FWIAATCBC have
been eliminated in the financial statements.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The Authority has adopted GASBE Statement No. 20, Acgounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that use
Proprietary Fund Accounting. The Authority folleows GASB proncuncements as
codified under GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1985 FASE and AICPA
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Pronouncemants.

The Authority adopted GASE Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus, effective on January 1, 2013. This Statement is an amendment of GASB

Statements No. 14 and No. 34. It modifies existing requirements for the
assessment of potential component units in determining what should be included in
the financial reporting entity, the financial reporting entity display and
disclosure requirements. The adoption of this Statement has nc effect on the
Authority’s beginning net position.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the
Authority considers all highly ligquid investments {including restricted assets}
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.
Cash equivalents, which are stated at cost, consist of short-term government money

market funds.

Investments - Indiana statutes authorize the Authority to invest in United States
obligations and issues cof federazl agencies, secured repurchase agreements,
certificates of deposit, money market deposit accounts, passbook savings accounts

and negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts.

The Autherity invests exclusively in short-—term nonnegotiable certificates of
deposit that are stated at cost. The Authority’s component units (FWIABC and
FWIAATCBC) may invest in short-term highly liquid money-market investments and
U.5. government securities that have maturities less than one year. These
investments are valued at amortized cost. There is no material difference between

the amortized cost and the fair value of these investments.

Unbilled Revenue - The Authority accrues revenue for rentals and fees earned but

not yet billed as of year-end.

Inventories — At year-end, the Authority had a significant amount of supplies
inventory on hand. Inventories are valued at cost using the first-in-first-out
method.

Capital Assets — On July 1, 1985, under an intergovernmental joint agreement
between Allen County and the City of Fort Wayne, and pursuant to Indiana Statute
§-22-3-1, the Authority was established and thereupon assumed all assets,
obligations and eguity of the City’s airport operations. Prior to that date, the
airport operated as an agency of the City under the Beard of Aviation.

Capital assets, which include property, equipment, infrastructure (e.g., taxiways,
runways, roads, terminal apron), and intangible assets are defined by the
Authority as assets with an initial cost of $5,000 or more and estimated useful
life of two or more years. These assets are recorded at historical cost.
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Capital assets assumed by the Authority from the City on July 1, 1985, are carried
at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciaticon, in the accompanying financial
statements and aggregated $3,694,355 at December 31, 2013.

Maintenance and repairs that do not add wvalue to the assets or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. When capital assets are disposed of, the
related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts
and any galn or loss on disposition is credited or charged to expense. Runways,
taxiways, parking areas, sewers and other similar items are written off when fully
depreciated unless clearly identified as still being in use.

Except for inexhaustible capital assets such as land, land improvements, avigation
easements and construction in progress, all capital assets, including
infrastructure assets, are depreciated or amortized (intangibles) using the

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Years
Buildings -and improvements 5-30
Infrastructure items 10-50
Intangibles 3-10
Egquipment 3-20

In acccrdance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, interest
during construction periods, when significant, is capitalized and included in the
cost of capital assets. The Authority incurred total interest cost of $607, 545
for the year ended December 31, 2013. The Authority did not capitalize any
interest in 2013.

Original Issue Discount and Premium - Original issue discount and premium on bonds
are amortized using the interest method cover the life of the bonds te which it
relates.

Compensated Absences - All full-time employees receive compensation for vacations,
holidays, illness, and certain other qualifying absences. The number of days
compensated for the varlous categories of gbsence is generally based on length of
service. Vacation that has been earned but nct paid has been accrued in the
financial statements. Accumulated unused sick leave benefits are nonvesting and
are only paid out upon retirement. The maximum accumulation per employee is 1,460
hours for Public Safety employees and 1,040 hours for all other employees.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, the Authority accrues accumulated unused
sick leave benefits for employees with at least 10 years of service regardless of
age and employees age 50 or older regardless cof length of service. Based upon
histeorical informaticn, it was determined that these employeses would most likely
meet the conditions necessary to receive their sick leave benefits.
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Net Position - The residual of all elements presented in the Authcrity’s Statement
of Net Position. It is the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of
rescurces and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position has
three components: Net investment in capital assets; restricted and unrestricted.
Net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt related to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources that are attributable to the acgquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets or related debt are alsc included in this compcenent cof
net position. The restricted component of net positlon consists of restricted
asselts reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those
assets. The Authority’s restricted assets are expendable. The unrestricted
component of net positien is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows cof rescurces that are not included in
the determination of net investment in capital assets cor the restricted component

of net position.

Capital Grant Funds - Certain expenditures for airport capital improvements
receive significant federal funding through the Alrport Tmprovement Program of the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA}, and the Department of the Army, National
Guard Bureau, Department of Defense. TFunds are also received for airport
development from the State of Indiana. The Autherity funds the remaining balance
of such expenditurss. Capital funding provided under government grants is
considered earned as the related approved capital improvement expenditures are

disbursed.

Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) Revenue - The Authority received approval from the
FAA to impose and use a PFC of $3 per enplaned passenger beginning July 1, 19933.
The charge is used for construction and debt service payments on two projects:

(1 Loop Access Roadway and Parking Improvements, and

(2} Terminal Expansion and Renovation
During 2005, the Authority received approval from the FAA to increase the PFC from
83 to $4.50 per enplaned passenger beginning December 1, 2005. In addition, the
Authority received approval to purchase firefighting and snow removal equipment,
in addition to the twe projects above, with the new PFC collections. The
following projects {equipment) were approved:

(1} Aircraft Rescue and Firefighting vehicle
2) 4 ¥ 4 High Speed Runway Snow Blower
3} 4 X 4 High Speed Snowplow
43 4 X 4 High Speed Snowplow, and

(
(
{
(95) Mokhile Deicer Collector Unit
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PFC's are collected by the airlines and are recognized as revenue by the Authority
as they are earned, and arse included in nonoperating revenues.

Customer Facility Charge (CFC) Revenue -~ The Authority received approval by the
Board in 2011 to cellect a CFC from all car rental companies that operate on the
Airport. The CFC is $1.50 per car rental transaction per day for up to four days.
CEC revenues.will be used tc construct a new car rental parking area and car
rental parking area maintenance on the Airport. CFC’s are recognized as revenue

by the Autheority as they are earned, and are included in noneperating revenues.

Rental Income - All leases of the Authority are accounted for as operating leases.
Rental income is generally recognized as it becomes receivable over the respective
lease terms. The ARuthority has no significant leases that would require the
recording cf income in accordance with GASB No. 13, Accounting for Operating
Leases with Scheduled Rent Increases.

Property Taxes - The follewing summarizes the property tax calendar for the
curreni year:

Lien date March 1, 2012

Levy date January 1, 2013

Tax bills mailed April 1 and Octocber 1, 2013

First installment payment due May 10, 2013

Second installment payment due November 10, 2013

Authority collection dates June and December, 2013

Tax sale - 2013 delinguent '
property taxes August, 2015

Property taxes levied are collected by the Allen County Treasurer and periodically
remitted te the Authority.

Property taxes are accrued when levied, and receivables {(current and noncurrent)
aggregated £1%%,114 with an allowance of $110,196 for delinguent taxes, at
December 31, 2013.

Risk Management - The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errcors and cmissicns;
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority carries commercial
insurance to protect against all of these risks of loss. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage during the past
three years. There was no reduction in insurance coverage during 2013.

Budgetary Compliance - The State of Indiana requires the Authority to legally
adopt a budget annually. The basis of budgetary adoption and compliance is
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primarily cash basis accounting. Open purchase orders are added to budgetary
expenditures at year—-end to measure compliance. Additicnally, open purchase
orders are automatically added to the following year's budget without the
necessity of the additiocnal appropriation legal process. All remaining

unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end.

The legal level of budgetary control is by major expense category. Budgeted
amounts may be transferred within major expense categories sclely upon approval
from the Authority's Board. However, any revision that alters the total
appropriation of any major expense category must, in addition, be approved .by the
State Department of Local Government Finance. During the year, several
appropriation transfers were made to ensure that expenditures did not exceed

budgeted appropriations.

NOTE 2 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash, cash equivalents and investments included in the statement of net position
at December 31, 2013, consist of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Amount
CUTTENT . + v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ... 85 7,871,336
Current, restricted . . . . . .« .+ .+ & .« o . o . o s 2,849,250
Nencurrent, restricted . . . . .+ . .+ - . o« . . . 4+ 134,447

_10,855,033

Investments:

Current. « v v e s 4 e e e 4w e e e e e e e e e e e 8,930,000
Current, restricted. . . . « .+ « -« .« « .« « « o o . . .. 260,024
Noncurrent, restricted . . . . . .« .« « .« o+ - - o . . . 5,808,976

15,000,000

$25,855,033
Deposits and investments with financial institutions at December 31, 2013 are as
follows:
Cash deposSitsS. « . v « « v & « « « & 4 v « &« + . . . . . $ 9,858,877
Certificates of deposit (CD's) . . . . . « . .« .+ .« « - .« . 15,000,000
Total GeposSits .« « « v« v 4 e 4 e e e e e e ... . . $24,858,877

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned. The Authecrity’s deposit
policy for custedial credit risk requires compliance with provisions of Indiana
Code (IC) 5-13~9. The Authority’s cash deposits and CD's are insured by the
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Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) at each bank for a combined total of
up to $250,000. Depcsits in excess of $250,000 for cash deposits and CD’'s at each
bank are insured by the Indiana Public Deposits Insurance Fund (IPDIF}. The IPDTF
is a multiple financial institution collateral pcol as provided under IC 5-13-12-
1. Authority depesits totaling $1,250,000 are insured by the FDIC. Remaining
deposits are insured by the IPDIF.

At Becember 31, 2013, the Authority had the following cash equivalents (maturity
of three months or less):

Short-term government money market funds . . . . . . . . . § 1,095,582

Custodial credit risk for investments i1s the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. FWIABC and FWIAATCBC, the Authority’s component
units, peolicies are tec invest primarily in U.S. Government money market funds.
Althcugh not guaranteed by the FDIC or the IPDIF, thegse funds invest their assets
exclusively in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other cbligations guaranteed
by the U.8. Treasury. A portion of the AZuthority’s bank deposits that are
invested overnight in repurchase agreements are uninsured and held in the
fipnancial institution’s name. The Authority’s policy is to follow IC 5-13-9-2.5,
which requires that repurchase agreements be collateralized with U.S. Government
securities.

Credit risk 1s the risk that an issuer or other counterparty tc an investment will
not fulfill its obligations. To minimize credit risks associated with
investments, the Authority’s policy is to follow IC 5-13-9-2.5, which limits
investments to money market funds rated AAAm by Standard and Poor'’s Corporation or
Aaa by Moody’'s Investors Service, Inc., repurchase agreements fully collaterized
by U.5. Government securities, and U.S. Treasury ocbligations (or other U.S. Agency
obligations). As of December 31, 2013, the Authority’'s investments met these
criteria.

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the failr value of an investment. The Authority’s investment policy to
minimize interest rate risk is to abide by the Indiana Code, which limits
investments t¢ securities with a stated maturity of net more than two years. This
maturity limitation reduces the Authority’'s exposure te declines in fair values
related to increases in interest rates. FWIABC and FWIAATCBC investment policy is
to limit investments Lo money market funds that have a weighted average maturity
of 90 days or less. These investments are available for redemption daily without
penalty.
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Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment or depesit. All Authority deposits and

investments are dencminated in U.S. currency.

NOTE 3 RESTRICTED ASSETS

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash, cash egquivalents and invesiments
are restricted as fellows:
Amount

Pursuant teo the FWIABC Improvement Refunding
Bonds of 2004 Trust Indenture:

Bond Sinking Fund Account. . . . . . . . o o . .o . $ 1,080,337

Rond Operation and Reserve Account . . . . . . . . . . 7,986
Pursuant to the FWIAATCBC First Mortgage Taxable
Refunding Bonds of 2011 Trust Indenture:

Bend Sinking Fund Account. . . . . . . . . .o . . . 7,259

Bond Operation and Reserve Account . . . . . . . . . . -
Property Tax Revenues Reserved for Debt Service. . . . . 621,223
Pursuant to the Aviation Safety and Capacity Expansion
Act of 1990, Federal Aviation Regulation Part 158:

Passenger Facility Charge Account. . . . . . . . . . . 643,728
Pursuant to the Cumulative Building Fund

Account Established in 2001. . . . . . . . « « .+ .« . . 6,565,976
Security Deposits. . . . . < o . . . o . .. - o e e 127,188
TOEAl. © 4 o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e w83 9,053,697

Airport Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2004

The Trust Indenture adopted December 23, 2004, in conjuncticn with the issuance of
the Airport Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2004 (the 2004 Bonds), provided that
certain accounting procedures be followed and certain accounts be esteblished.

The Trust Indenture requires the Trustee Lo establish the following accounts:

Sinking Fund and Operation and Reserve.

Sinking Fund Account - In addition to any balance remaining in the Bond Issuance
Expense Acccunt, the Trustee will also deposit all rental payments received from
the Autheority, or an amount, which when added to the balance in the Sinking Fund
Account equals the sum of the interest and principal due on or before or within 20
days after such payment becomes due. Any portion of rental payments remaining
after such deposit shall be deposited into the Operation and Reserve Account.
Principal and interest cn the 2004 Bonds will be paid from the Sinking Fund

Account as they become due.
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Operation and Reserve Account - This account is used to pay incidental expenses of
FWIABC, the principal, interest and redemption premium on the Bonds and, if the
amount in the Sinking Fund Account is less than the required amount, the Trustee
will transfer funds from the Operation and Reserve Account to raise the Sinking
fund Account to the appropriate level.

First Mortgage Taxable Refunding Bonds of 2011
The Trust Indenture adopted February 17, 2011 with the issuance of the First

Mortgage Taxable Refunding Bonds of 2011, provided that certain accounts be
maintained by the Trustee: Sinking Fund and Operation and Reserve accounts.

Sinking Fund Account - This account is used to deposit rental payments received,
and to pay principal and interest as they become due.

Operation and Reserve Account - This account is used to pay necessary incidental
expenses (e.g., ftrustee fees, accounting fees, appraisals, meetings, cost of
rebate calculations, etc.) of the FWIAATCBC. If the amount Iin the Sinking Fund
Account is less than the required amount, the trustee shall transfer funds from
the Operation and Reserve Account to raise the Sinking Fund Account to the
appropriate level.

The Authority levies a property tax for the payment of principal and interest on
these bonds. The levy became effective for taxes collected during 2009,

The Authority is in compliance with all significant financial bond covenants as of
December 31, 2013.

NOTE 4 INVENTORIES

Inventory of supplies and materials at December 31 consists of the following:

Amount
Supply inventories held for consumption. . . . . . . . . 5 114,984
Fizxed based operator inventories held for resale . . . . 49,311
Total inventories. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 164,305
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31 consists of the following:

Capital assets, not
being depreciated:

Land.

Intangibles

Work in progress.

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated .

Capital assets, being
depreciated:

Buildings and improvements.
Infrastructure items,
Intangibles

Equipment

Total capital assets,

being depreciated .

Less accumulated depreciation
for:

Buildings and improvements.
Infrastructure items.
Intangibles

Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

A1l depreciation expense,

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deletions Balance
$ 198,928,927 $ 477,579 —— $ 20,406,506
118,357 - e 118,357
3,159,283 4,021,340 3,442,669 3,737,554
23,206,567 4,498,919 3,442,669 24,262,817
73,588,309 659,200 182,828 74,054,681
133,710,153 2,949,113 226,786 136,432,480
2,598,987 25,570 147,606 2,476,961
9,055,174 1,085,970 237,218 9,903, 926
218,952,633 4,719,853 804,438 222,868,048
42,536,389 2,745,213 169,873 45,111,729
92,429,736 4,079,866 226,720 96,282,882
1,141,873 204,623 147,606 1,198,880
5,816,404 521,415 237,218 6,100,601
147,924,402 7,551,117 781,417 148,694,102
$100,234,728 1,667,655 $ 3,465,690 $ 98,436,763

$7,551,117 for the current year, was charged to the

Authority fund. There was no depreciaticn expense charged to component units.

NOTE & PROPERTY TAXES

The applicable property tax rates and related levies in 2013 are as follows:

Operating.
Debt Service
Curmulative Building.

Teotal.
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Rate

Per 5100

$ .0282
.0149
__.0033

S .0471

Property Tax
Levies

$ 3,693,539

1,904,282

421,754

5 6,019,575



FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY ATRPORT AUTHORITY

Notes to Financial Statements-Continued

NOTE 7 PENSION PLAN

On January 1, 1997, the statewide Indiana Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF)
separated the Authority from Allen County’s PERF account and established a
separate account for the Autheority. On the above date, the Authority assumed no
liabilities and received no assets for employee service prior to this date.

Assets and liabilities of the plan for Autherity employees prior to January 1,
1997 were transferred from Allen County on July 1, 2002. The Authority has
adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASE} Statement Number 50,
Pension Disclosures, an amendment of GASB Statements Number 25 and Number 27. The
Authority’s Pension Plan has both a defined benefit and a defined contribution
component.

Defined Benefit

Plan Description - The Authority’s defined benefit pension plan provides
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERF i1s a statewide agent multiple-
employer pension plan that acts as a common investment and administrative agent
for state and local govermmental units in Indiana. PERF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information (RSI}. That report may be obtained by writing to the
Indiana Public Retirement System, One North Capitol, Suite 001, Indianapolis,
Indiana 46204, or by calling 1-317-233-4123.

Funding Policy - Indiana Statutes (IC 5-10.2 and 5-10.3) govern most requirements
of the defined benefit plan, and give the Authority the authority to contribute to
the plan. The contribution requirements of the Autheority are established by the
Board cof Trustees of PERF, and may be amended by this Board. Authority employees
do not contribute to the defined benefit plan. The Authcority is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 9 percent of
annual covered payroll.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation (Asset) - The Authority’s annual
pension cost and net pension obligation for the current year were as follows:

Annual required contribution $ 306,276
Interest on net pension obligation 2,583
Adjustment to annual regquired contribution {3,007)
Annual pension cost 305,852
Contributions made (289,215)
Increase in net pension obligation 16,637
Net pension obligation, beginning of year 38,266
Net pension ckligation, end of year 5 54,903

The annual required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2013
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The
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actuarial assumptions included (a) 6.75 percent investment rate of return (net of
administrative and investment expenses); (b} projected salary increases per year
are age-based rates ranging from 3.25 to 4.5 percent, based upon PERF experience
from 2005 to 2010, and includes a 3.0 percent assumption attributable to the
effects of inflation on salaries; and (c} 1.0 percent post-retirement benefit
increases. The actuarial value of PERF assets was determined using techniques
that smooth the effects of short-term veolatility in the market value (with a 20
percent corridor) of investments over a four-year period. The Authority’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized by level percentage of
projected payroll on a closed basis over a thirty-year period (15 years in the
case of cost of living adjustments). The remaining amortization period at
December 31, 2013, was 15 years.

Three Year Trend Information - Trend information gives an indication of the
progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. The
amount for net pension obligation is an indication that the Authority’s annual
pension costs have exceeded annual contributicns.

Annual Percentage Net

Pension of APC Pension
Year Cost (APC) Contributed Obligaticn
2011 $ 301,613 4% $ 12,560
2012 320,587 92 38,266
2013 305,852 95 54,903

Funded Status and Funding Preogress — As of June 30, 2013, the most recent
actuarial valuation date, the plan was 43.6 percent funded. The actuarial accrued
liability for benefits was $4.5 million and the actuarial value of assets was $2.1
million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial liability of $2.7 million. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3.5
million, and the ratic of the unfunded actuarial liability to covered payrcll was
79.2 percent.

The schedule of funding progress presented as RSI following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative Lo
the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Defined Contribution

The Ruthority’s defined contribution plan is the other component of the
Authority’s pension plan that is also administered by PERF. PERF accumulates
employee contributions and allocates investment inccme into a separate system wide
fund for all members. Upon retirement, employees may elect a lump sum
distribution of all or part of the savings account. Employees who leave
employment before qualifying for benefits under the defined benefit component
receive a refund of this savings account.

Employees are reguired to contribute 3 percent of their annual salary to an
annuity savings account. Since 1987, the Authority has been funding the employee
contribution reguirement. The contribution rate is established by the Indiana
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State Legislature, and may be amended only by this body. During 2013, the
Authority contributed 5105,156 on behalf of the employees This amount represents
the employer’s reguired contribution to the plan.

NOTE 8 OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description ~ The Authority administers a single-employer defined benefit
retiree healthcare plan. The plan provides medical and dental benefits to
eligible retirees and their spouses. Eligible employees must be at least 60 years
of age with 10 years of continuous full time employment. Coverage ends at
Medicare eligibility date. The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly
available financial report.

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members are established by
the Authority Board and may be amended annually. Retiree contributions vary based
upon the option they choose: Option 1 1s a traditional paid provider plan and
Option 2 is & high deductible paid provider plan. Under Option 1, each retirece
contributes 5179 per month for the retiree and $197 for the spouse. Under Option
2, each retiree contributes $120 per month for the retiree and $150 for the
spouse. For the year ended December 31, 2013, five (number of participants
currently eligible) retirees contributed $12,041 and the Authority contributed
$45,472 to the plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB -~ The Authority’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual reguired contribution (ARC} of the employer, an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongolng basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a periocd not to exceed 30 years. The following table shows
the components of the Authority’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Authority’s net OFPER
obligation to the Plan.

Annmual required contribution $ 132,108
Interest on net OPEB obligaticn 12,758
Adjustment to annual required contribution (21,064}
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 123,802
Contributions made (45, 472)
Increase in net COPEBR obligation 78,330
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of vyear 425,254
Net OPEB obligation, end of year 3 503,584

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost ccocntributed
to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2013 and the preceding twe years were
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as follows:

Percentage Net
Annual Annual OPEB OPEB
Year QOPEB Cost Contributed Cbhligation
2011 $ 84,289 32.1% $ 383,144
2012 87,007 51.6 425,254
2013 123,802 36.7 503,584

Funded Status and Funding Progress — As of December 31, 2012, the most recent
valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $1,126,517, all
of which was unfunded. The covered payrcll (annual payrell of actlve employees
covered by the plan) was $3.5 millicn, and the ratioc of the unfunded actuarial
accrued liability to the covered payroll was 31.8 percent.

Actuarial wvaluations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the wvalue of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumpticons about future employment, mertality, and the
health care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented
as regquired supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value
of plan assets 1s increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial

accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Projections of benefits for finmancial
reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan {(the plan as understood by
the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term veolatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of

assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

Ir the December 31, 2012 actuarial wvaluation, the projected unit credit cost
method was used. The actuarial assumptions included an annual healthcare cost
trend rate of 10 percent for medical care initially, reduced by decrements to an
ultimate rate of 5 percent after 11 years. The trend rate for dental care remains
at 5 percent. The actuary did not factor an inflation rate into the calculations.
A discount rate of 4 percent was used to discount projected benefits to their
present value. This rate was based upon historical and expected future returns on
the assets expected to be available to pay or provide OPEB when due. The unfunded

actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the level dollar amcrtization
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method con an open basis. The remaining amortization pericd at December 31, 2013
was 24 years.

NOTE 9 BONDS AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds and Other Long—-Term Debt consist of:
Revenue Bonds Amount

Ailrpeort Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2004:
Fort Wayne Internaticonal Airport
Building Corporatiocn—-— )
Final principal of $1,055,000 is payable on
January 1, 2014,
Final interest at 3.75 to 5.0% is due on
January 1, 2014 . . . . . . . . . . . . . oo e 8 1,055,000

First Mortgage Federally Taxable Refunding Bonds of 2011:
Fort Wayne International Airport Air
Trade Center Building Corporation
Principal payable semi-annually on January 15, 2014
to January 15, 2020 in payments ranging from
$875,000 in 2020 to $1,875,000 in 2019.
Interest at 3.3 tc 5.54% due semi- annually

on January 15 and July 15 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11,035,000
Total bonds . . . . .« . L 0 e e e e e e e e e e e, 12,080,000
Less: Current portion. . . . . . . . . . . . e ... (2,565,000)

$ 9,525,000

The Authority has a legal debt limit of $85,202,752 which represents 2 percent of
the adjusted value of Allen County property. Adjusted value is calculated by
multiplying one~third times assessed value as certified by the S$tate Department of

Local Government Finance. Since the Authority has no general obligation debt
outstanding, the legal debt margin of the Autheority is also 585,202,752 as of
December 31, 2013.

Airport Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2004

The Fort Wayne International Airport Building Corporation (FWIABC) Ajrport
Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2004 (the 2004 Bonds) are collateralized by the
revenues and assets of the Trust, and rent and other payments made by the Authority
under the lease between the FWIABC (Lessocor) and the Authority (Lessee} described
bkelow.

FWIABC agreed to sell the 2004 Bonds in the original amount of $15,475,000 to
refund the 1993 and 1994 Airpert Improvement Bonds {the 1993 and 1994 bonds). The
Authority will make semi-annual lease-purchase payments, which approximate bond
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principal and interest payments. The lease payments by the authority will be made
from operating revenues and, in the event such revenues are insufficient, from
unlimited ad valorem taxes to be levied by the Authority cn all taxable property
within Allen County.

The previously issued and ncw refunded 15%%3 and 1994 Bonds were used to provide
funds for comstructing a loop access roadway, parking facilities and utilities
located generally north of the terminal building; and for constructing, renovating,
and eguipping the terminal building. These facilities were completed in 199%96.

FWIARC retains title to these facilities until the option to purchase 1s exercised
or the lease term is ended. At such time, the facilities become the property of
the Authority.

The 2004 Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.

First Mortgage Federally Taxable Refunding Bonds of 2011

The Fort Wayne International Airport Air Trade Center Building Corporation
(FWIAATCBCZ) First Mortgage Federally Taxable Bonds of 2011 {the 2011 Bonds) are
secured by semiannual lease rental payments to be paid by the Authority pursuant
to the terms of the Master Lease agreement between the FWIAATCEC {Lessor) and the
Authority (Lessee) described below.

FWTAATCBC agreed to sell the 2011 Bonds in the original amount of 514,710,000 to
refund the 1998 First Mortgage Bonds (the 1998 Bonds}). The previously issued 1998
Bonds were used to construct and equip an air freight hub, aircraft maintenance
facility, air cargo sorting facilities, parking, fueling and related facilities,

and personal property connected with the above.

In 1998, the Authority entered into a Master Lease with FWIAATCBC. FWIAATCBC
agreed to sell bonds to finance the construction of the project described above.
In addition, the Ruthority agreed to sublet the project through a buillding leass
with an unrelated air cargo company. Subsequently, on October 29, 2007, the air
cargo company filed petitions for reorganization under the Chapter 11 Bankruptcy
Code, and ceased operations at Fort Wayne International Airport. Since the
provisions of the Master Lease agreement require the Authority to levy taxes on
all taxable property within Allen County if revenues from the building lease are
insufficient, the Authority cbtained approval from the Allen County Council during
2008 to levy a debt service tax on all taxable property within Allen County.
However, this levy may be reduced by amounts on deposit in the Authority’s lease
rental reserve account that consists of net lease rentals received, if any, from

future tenants of the facilities.
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FWIAATCBC retains title to the facilities until the option to purchase is

exercised or the lease term is ended. At such time, the facilities become the

property of the Authority.

The First Mortgage Bonds are not subject te coptional redemption prior to maturity,
but some of the bonds are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption.

Debt Defeasance
The Authority has no outstanding defeased debt.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows as of
December 31, 2013:

Pebt Service Requirements

Years ending December 31: Principal Interest Total
N $ 2,565,000 5 519,337 $ 3,084,337
L 1,565,000 441,101 2,006,101
2016 . . . . L L L L .. 1,630,000 376,895 2,006,885
2007 .. . . L. 1,700,000 305,364 2,005,364
2018 . . . . . 1,780,000 224,488 2,004,488
2019-2020. 2,850,000 159,275 3,008,275

$12,050, 000 $ 2,026,460 514,116,460

Changes in Bonds and Long-Term Liabilities

Bonds and long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2013, were
as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Long-term liabilities:
Compensated absences. $ 1,138,547 $ 248,796 5 {287,165) $ 1,080,178 & 209,848
Bonds and other long-
term debt:
Revenue bonds 15,600,000 -—= (3,510,000} 12,090,000 2,565,000
Plus premiums 17,614 ——— (17,614) - -
Total bonds and other
long~term debt . 15,617,614 - {(3,527,614) 12,090,000 2,565,000
Total bonds and long-
term liabilities 816,756,161 3 248,796 $(3,824,779) 513,180,178 § 2,774 848§
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NQTE 10 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Capital Improvements - At December 31, 2013, the Authority was obligated for
completion of road development, master plan, terminal builldirng improvements, land
and egquipment purchases, and various smaller projects under comnmitments
aggregating $3,231,682 with an estimated $2,664,951 eligible for reimbursement at
82.5 percent from the FAA and the State of Indiana.

Rebatable Arbitrage - Based upon calculations through Pecember 31, 2013, there are

no rebatable arbitrage liabilities.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Authority leases facilities to the airlines
under certain leases and/or use agreements and to ¢ther businesses under
agreements to operate concessions at the Airport. Accounts receivable and
unbilled revenue balances relate primarily to these activities. Amounts due from
passenger airlines represent approximately 58.3 percent of the accounts receivable
balances as of December 31, 2013.

Litigation - The nature of the business of the Authority generates certain
litigation against the Authority arising in the ordinary course of business.
However, the Authority believes the ultimate outcome of these matters in the
aggregate should not have a materially adverse effect on its financial position or

results of operations.

NOTE 11 RENTAL INCOME UNDER OPERATING LEASES

A significant portion of the operating revenue of the Authority is generated
through the leasing of airport and building space te airlines and others on a
fixed fee as well as a contingent rental basis. Ownership risks are retained by

the Authority and, accordingly, such leases are treated as operating leases.

The following is a schedule of minimum future rentals on non-cancelable operating

leases to be received in each of the next five years and thereaftern:

Years ending December 31:

2014 . . . . . . . . . 5 3,297,827
2015 . . . o o0 .. 2,386,085
2016 . . o o o ... 1,782,506
2017 . . . . . 0 .. 1,442,007
2018 . . o .0 L 0L 507,240
Later Years . . . . . . . 1,302,031
Total . . . . . .« « . . . £10,718,406
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The schedule above includes changes in rental rates that became effective on
January 1, 2014. These rates are adjusted annually.

Contingent rentals and fees aggregated $5,431,123 for the year ended December 31,
2013.

Substantially all the assets classified under capital assets in the statement of
net position are held by the Authority for the purpose cof rental or related use.

NOTE 12 MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Authority received significant
operating revenue from one airline. Rentals, landing fees, apron fees and other
revenues from this airline aggregated approximately 10.6 percent of operating

revenues.
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Employees Retirement Plan

Excess Assets

Actuarial {Unfunded AAL)as
actuarial Actuarial Accrued Excess Assets Funded Covered a Percentage of
Valuaticn Vvalue of Liability (AAL) {(Unfunded AAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date Bssets (1} Entry Age (2) (1 - 2y 1/ 2) (3) ((1 ~ 2)/3)}
7/1/04 52,101,867 31,508,381 $ 593,486 139.3% 52,910, 443 20.4%
7/1/05 2,193,053 1,843,705 249,348 112.8 2,981,687 8.4
7/1/06 2,603,064 2,028,014 575,050 128.4 3,049,154 18.9
/1707 2,932,891 2,430,873 502,018 120.7 3,294,131 15.2
7/1/08 3,248,909 2,966,134 282,775 109.5 3,535,802 8.0
7/1/09 3,159,739 3,172,161 (12,422) 100.0 3,642,394 0.3)
7/1/10 2,475,767 3,506,9%0 (1,031,223) 70.6 3,389,644 (30.4)
6/30/11 1,981,528 3,504,141 {1,522,613) 56.5 3,442,666 (44.2)
6/30/12 1,868,775 3,914,381 {2,045, 6086) 47.7 3,644,027 (56.1)
6/30/13 2,111,405 4,485,456 (2,734,0581) 43.6 3,450, 666 (79.2)
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Schedule of Funding Progress

Retiree Healthcare Plan

Unfunded
Actuarial ABRL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability {(AAL} Unfunded Funded Covered of Ceovered
Valuation value of Projected Unit AAT Ratio Payroll Payrcll
Date Assets (1) Credit (2) (1 - 2) (1 /2) (3) ({1 -23/3))
12/731/07(a) 50 5 798,194 $798,194 0.0% $3,326,274 24.0%
12/31/08 0 BBO, 772 88C,772 0.0 3,375,564 26.1
12/31/08 o} 978,354 978,354 0.0 3,652,914 26.8
12/31/10 0 964,500 964,500 0.0 3,608,928 26.7
12/31/711({B} 4 N/A H/A N/A 3,654,941 N/h
i2/31/12 ] 1,126,517 1,126,517 0.0 3,539,674 31.8
12/31/13 (B} 0 H/2 N/A N/A 3,505,194 N/A

Note A: The Authority implemented GASB 45 during 2008. Actuarial information prior
teo 2007 is not available.

Note B: No actuarial wvaluations were completed on December 31, 2011 and December 31,
2013.
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ENTERPRISE FUND COMBINING SCHEDULES

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations financed and operated in
a manner similar to private business enterprises. The Board intends that
costs (i.e., expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges.

The Fort Wayne-Allen County Airport Authority (Authority) - This fund is used
to account for the activities of the Authority.

The Fort Wayne International Airport Building Cerporation (FWIABC) - This
blended component unit was created te finance the construction of the
Authority’s Terminal Building Modernization, and Local Access Roads and
Parking Facilities projects. Capital lease bkalances and transactions between
the Authority and the FWIABC have been eliminated.

The Fort Wayne International Airport Air Trade Center Building Corporation
(FWIAATCBC)} - This blended component unit was created to finance the
construction of an air freight hub, aircraft maintenance facilities, air
cargo sorting facilities, parking, fueling and related facilities within the
Authority’s Air Trade Center. Capital lease balances and transactions
between the Authority and the FWIAATCBC have been eliminated.
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Combining Schedule of Net Position
December 31, 2013
Authority FWIABC FWIAATCBC Totals
CURRENT ASSETS:
Unrestricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents................ccoinn, $ 7,871,336 3 - by - $ 7,871,336
A 1 Tt 1 DO OO 8,930,000 - - 8,930,000
Accounts receivable, net of allowance.....ovvvevvivneiinenian 124,446 - - 124,446
Unbilled reveniie. ..o ov et e n e eaaa e 107,928 - - 107,928
Property tax receivable, net of allowanee....................el 54,559 - - 54,559
Other receivables. oo i e 24,987 - - 24,987
Ui 13 e S 164,305 - - 164,305
Prepaid Jems. . oovn e e e 265,660 - - 265,660
Total unrestricted a88e8. c. vttt iere v e raeneeenens 17,543,221 - - 17,543,221
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents,....c..oocoviviiiiincn 2,841,237 8,013 - 2,849,250
B¢ it o L= J U, 260,024 - - 260,024
Passenger facility charge receivable.......oooon, 120,375 - - 120,375
Federal and state grants receivable...........cooeiiiiiinnin 1,452,370 - - 1,452,370
Property tax receivable, net of allowances..............ooeeven e 28,129 - - 28,129
Other ECEIVABIES. . 1\ vvrier s ee et e e iiet et et ee e rneean e enes 16,947 - - 16,547
Total restricted asSetS....oi ittt rereaananeneens 4,719,082 8,013 - 4,727,095
Total CUrrent @58CT8. ... uiiie it iirciaeiiareaesinnrreraraeninns 22,262,303 8,013 - 22,270,316
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.. ..o 127,188 - 7,259 134,447
INVESHIIETIES . ottt veetinereneie et veesrarernsrneaerareaaannnanreonaennn 5,809,976 - - 5,809,976
Property tax receivable, net of allowance..................en. 6,230 - - 6,230
Total restricled ASSetS. ..ot 5,943,394 - 7,259 5,950,653
Capital a8Sets, Net. .......cooiiiiiiiiii e 98,436,763 - - 98,436,763
Total NOTCUITENT ASSEES. . cviviertvarnrsrrrrnrreseesaraancaaarnranenen 104,472,468 - 7,259 104,387,416
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amount on refunding bonds......ocoovviviiiiiiniinnnns, 92,311 - - 92311
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources.........cceevereene $ 126,734,771 $ 8,013 $ 7,259 $ 126,750,043
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Authority FWIABC FWIAATCBC Totals

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Payable from unrestricted:
Accounts payable. ... $ 1104472 5 - $ - $ 1,104,472
Acecrued Jabilities. ..o et 429,906 - - 429,906
AdVanCE FeIT. ..\ i e 303,411 - - 303,411
Total wnrestricted. ..o e 1,837,789 - - 1,837,789

Payable from restricted:

Accounts payable..................... e 127,188 - - 127,188
Current portion of long-term debt.............cooiiviiiiinnn.. 2,565,600 - - 2,565,000
Accrued interest on long-term debt, .o 278,495 - - 278,495
Total restricted. .....oiiviiiiiiii 2,970,683 - - 2,970,683
Total current labilities.......coovvei i, 4,808,472 - - 4,808,472
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Net other postemployment benefits obligation.................... 503,584 - - 503,584
Net pension obHgation.........vvv e v 54,903 - - 54,903
Accrued compensated absences.........oiiiiiiiiiiie e 880,331 - - 880,331
Bonds and other long-term debt, net.........ccovevviiiniinnnnnnnn. 9,525,000 - - 9,525,000
Total noncarrent Habilities, ...ooovvi it ee v e aaens 10,963,818 - - 10,963,818
Total Habilities. ..o e e 15,772,290 - - 15,772,290
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital 858618, .....vvviiviirinieiriiinieieneniann. 86,439,074 - - 86,439,074
Restricted for:
Dbl SETVICE. vt rait it en et st te et e e e anans 2,094,895 8,013 7.259 2,110,167
Capital ProjectS. . ciiiiii e e 8,161,898 - - 8,161,898
UNrestricted. ... oot ee e e 14,266,614 - - 14,266,614
Total net PoSHioN. c.coviv i e 110,962 481 8,013 7,259 110,977,753
Total liabilities and net postion..........ccovaiviiiciiiinenees. $126,734,771 $ 8013 $ 7,259 $ 126,750,043
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ENTERPRISE FUND

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Authority FWIABC FWIAATCBC Totals
OPERATING REVENUES:

ATEFIRIA. ettt e e e $ 1,618892 $ - $ - $ 1,618,892

Buildings and grounds..........oooin 2,097,557 - - 2,097,557

TErMUNAL cev vt e e 2,944,923 - - 2,944,923

ParKingZ. ...ooviienaeeiie e 2,829.131 - - 2,829,131

Reliever airport.......coooviiiiiii e 435,806 - - 435,806

Total OPETating rEVENIES . ... vvuiiiariiciianiiiiereresea 9,926,309 - - 9,926,309
OPERATING EXPENSES:

AR, e 3,026,447 - - 3,026,447

Buildings and grounds..........coooooiiiiin i 1,055,449 - - 1,055,449

BN 71013 1) FOR PP 1,502,978 - - 1,502 978

Parking. . veeveernere e ee e st e e 989,986 - - 989,986

Reliever airport. .....oovnniorrinerine e e 688,311 - - 688,311

AdminiSration. ...t 2,771,753 - - 2,771,753

Depreciation. ......coooive it 7,551,117 - - 7,551,117

Total Operating EXPenses. .........cu.vvesverereeseeserson- 17,586,041 - - 17,586,041
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS.....coiiiieniciiiniieeinaenens (7,659,732) - - (7,659,732)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Property and other taXes. .. .vvevviniiiiiiiiiiiisnieeeaees 6,674,720 - - 6,674,720

Passenger facility charge. ... 1,215,576 - - 1,215,576

Customer facility charge......cocovovnicviieice i, 244,493 - - 244 493

THterest ICOMIE, v vveit e in e erareierne s siara e s aanans 76,259 10 20 76,289

INtErest EXPENSE. - .uee e e eiiiiia i n e e e (607,545) - - (607,543)

Gain on disposal of capital assets..........ccoocciiiiinnn 9.811 - “ 9,811

Net nonoperating revertes. ... 7,613,314 10 20 7,613,344
GAIN (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS...... (46,418) 10 20 (46,388)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:

Federal and state grants......ccccoceiiiiiiii i 3,188,668 - - 3,188,668
INCREASE IN NET POSITION. ....itiiiivveieeinnirneiaaans 3,142,250 10 20 3,142,280
NET POSITION:

Total net position, beginning of year...........ooveeeinnnn. 107,820,231 8,003 7239 107,835,473
Total net position, end of year..........oocoviiiiviinnnn $ 110,962,481 $ 8,013 $ 7,259 $110,977,753
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipls from CUSTOMEIS. ...\ vicieaees e ees e e aean,
Payments 10 SUPPLEES.. e v eeie et eee e
Payments to employees.......ocooviiiiciiiii
Payments of benefits on behalf of employees........ooineni.
Retorn of customer deposits......ooovivvivii i

Net cash provided by operating activities...............cccevevneen ..

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITY:

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities..............

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts of property and other taXes..........cooeeiiviiiininnniens
Acquisjtion and construction of capital assets......................
Sale of capital assets.......ocooociii
Principal paid on bonds and other long-term debt..................
Interest paid on bonds and other fong=term debt....................
Capital grant receipls.........coioii ittt
Passenger facility charge receipts.......cccoovcieiiiniiicininnnn.
Customer facility charge receipfs.......oo.oviiieeiiiiiciiiiieinnann.

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities..........

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investment SeCUrTes. .coove i it ceeirienennens
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities.......
Interest received O INVESHMENLS. v v ivierviitsirinseriieneananenrnens
Net cash provided by investing activities..............ocvcivivennns
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS............
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR......

CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR................

57

Authority FWIABC  FWIAATCBC Totals
. $104241t5 0§ - 3 - $10,124.115
(4,387,128) - - (4,387,128)
e (3,884,895) - - (3,884,893)
e {1,606,973) - - (1,606,973)
(3,160 - - (3,160)
241,959 - - 241,959
4,412,115 - - 4412115
4,412,115 - - 4,412,115
2,267,743 - - 2,267,743
(5,390,482) - - (5,390,482)
. 32,832 - - 32,832
e (3,510,000) - - (3,510,000)
- (659,927) - - (639,927)
" 2,226,947 - - 2,229,947
.- 1,247,276 - - 1,247,276
228,017 - - 228,017
e (3,554,594) - - (3,554,594)
... (20,000,000) - - (20,000,000)
25,000,000 - - 25,000,000
e 88,506 1 20 88,536
5,088,506 10 20 5,088,536
6,187,986 10 20 6,188,016
4,651,775 8,003 7,239 4,667,017
... _$10.839.761 $ 8013 § 7259 $10,855,033
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
ENTERPRISE FUND
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows-Continued
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Authority FWIABC FWIAATCBC Totals
Reconeiliation of operating loss to net cash used in operating activities:
LSS from Operations. . ... oo $(7,659,732) § - $ - $ (7,659,732)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net
cash used in operating activities:
DEPIECIatiON. . .vvvneit ettt raait e e st s s s st s e aeaa e 7,551,117 - - 7,551,117
Bad debf eXpense. .....oovoiiviiiiiiiiiinii e 8,522 - - 8,522
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue.................. 139,929 - - 139,929
OUNEE ASSEES. 1.ttt itii it irr it te e tn e are e naaees 103,494 - - 103,494
Accounts payable. ... (3,456) - - (3,456)
Accrued Habilities, ..o 7,118 - - 7,118
Net OPEB and net pension obligation...................... 94,967 - - 94,967
Net cash used in operating activities............c...oceounne $ 241,959 $ - $ - $ 241,959
NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital assets included in accounts payable.................coooeees $ 798,524 ) - $ - $ 798,524
Capital assets acquired in lease transaction................c...c. 155,060 - - 155,000
Capital contributions from federal and state grants................. 958,721 - - 958,721
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Schedale of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

December 31, 2013
Principal Interest Total
2014 e $ 2,565,000 $ 519,337 $ 3,084,337
2015 1,565,000 441,101 2,006,101
2006, 1,630,000 376,895 2,006,895
2017 e 1,700,000 305,364 2,005,364
2018, 1,780,000 224,488 2,004,488
2019 i 1,875,000 132,267 2,007,267
2020, 975,000 27,008 1,002,008
Totals..........oooveinnnn. $ 12,090,000 $ 2,026,460 $ 14,116,460
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Schedule of Capital Assets and Aceumulated Depreciation
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 2013

Capital Assets (1)
Balance at ' Balance at
Category 01/01/13 Additions Deletions (2) 12/31/13

Land..........oocoviiiinienes $ 19,928927 $ 477,579 $ 20,406,500
Avigation easements........ 118,357 118,357
Runways and taxiways....., 109,447 844 838,585 $ 62,726 110,223,703
Buildings...................... 73,588,309 659,200 192,828 74,054,681
Roads and parking........... 24,262,309 2,110,528 164,060 26,208,777
Snow equipment............. 4,029,592 4,029,592
Vehicles,...ooovvinniiniiininns 2,660,140 109,472 93,996 2,675,616
Other equipment............. 2,365,442 976,498 143,222 3,198,718
Software and data base..... 402,687 25,570 428.257
Master plans.................. 2,196,310 147,606 2,048,704
Work in progress............ 3,159,283 4,021,340 3,442 669 3,737,954

Total capital assets......... $ 242,159,260 $ 9218,772 $ 4247107 $ 247,130,865

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at Balance at
Category 01/01/13 Additions Deletions (2) 12/31/13

Runways and taxiways....., $ 81,837,097 $ 3,005,088 $ 62,726 $ 84,779,459
Buildings...........c.covvnen, 42.536,390 2,745,213 169,873 45,111,730
Roads and parking........... 10,592,639 1,074,778 163,994 11,503,423
Snow equipment............. 2,482,133 208,782 2,690,915
Vehicles.............ccooenenn 1,581,284 139,306 93,996 1,626,594
Other equipment............. 1,752,986 173,327 143,222 1,783,091
Software and data base..... 260,301 41,080 301,441
Master plans.................. 881,512 163,543 147,600 897.449

Total depreciation.......... $ 141,924 402 $ 7,551,117 $ 781,417 $ 148,694,102

(1) Capital assets are carried at historical cost except for assets assumed by the Authority at July 1, 1985,
that are carried at historical cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Assets are depreciated or amortized
using the straight-line method over their usefud lives.

(2) Deletions consist of disposals and assets that were no longer in service.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Schedule of Revenues - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

2013 Actual
Variance
GAAP GAAP Cash 2013 Budget Owver
Major Revenue Categories Basis Adjustments Basis (1) As Adjusted {Under)
Airfield use fees.c...coocvcecie. $ 1,892,889 $ (33871 § 1,859,018 $ 1,723,851 § 135,167
Building rent and services.. 3,690,030 242372 3,932,402 3,547,005 385,397
Land rent.... 388,025 4,664 392,689 397,450 {4,761}
Parking....... 2,829,131 - 2,829,131 2,702,168 126,963
Autorental.........ooooverecre e 958,629 40,574 999,203 900,601 98,602
Restaurant............ooccoeevvnecniininnns 123,007 (1,356) 121,651 113,400 8,251
Other income.... 54,409 21,401 75,810 21,915 53,895
In{erest MEOME. .o vreerreireririnene 76,289 12,247 88,536 78,425 10,111
Property and other taxes..... 6,674,720 3,138 6,679,858 6,641,363 38,495
Passenger facility charges............. 1,213,576 31,700 1,247,276 1,073,970 173,306
Customer facility charges............. 244,493 {16,476) 228,017 236,355 {8,338)
Total revenues..........c.cvvecevrermine 18,147,198 306,393 18,453,591 17,436,503 1,017,088
Capital coniributions:
Federal grants..........ccooovievninnens 3,102,488 (955,564) 2,146,924 3,525,000 (1,378,076}
State Zrants......o.occreeecmrcriens. 86,180 (3,157) 83,023 97916 (14,893)
Total capital contributions. ......... 3,188,668 (958,721) 2,229,947 3,622.916 (1,392,969)
Total.......ovevveereceierieeeee 8 21,335 866 § (652328) _$ 20683538 $ 21059419 § (375881

{1) Indiana state statutes require budgetary compliance accounting on a cash basis.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Schedule of Expenses-Budget and Actnal
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

2013 Actual
Variance
GAAP GAAP Cash Open 2013 2013 Over
Major Expense Calegories Basis Adjustments Basis (1) Purchase Orders Actuat Budget (Unden)(2)
PERSONAIL SERVICES:
Salarics and wages.............. $ 3,685895 § 199,000 $ 3,884.895 § - § 3884855 % 4,083,802 $ (198,907
Employee benefits................. 1,770,559 (163,626) 1,606,973 61,698 1,668,671 1,932,372 {263,701)
Total personal services........ 5,456,494 35,374 5,491,868 61,698 5,553,566 6,016,174 {462,608)
SUPPLIES ... 1,247,238 (125,613} 1,121,625 51,551 1,173,176 1,582,008 {408,832)
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES:
Professional services............. 632,687 (28,997) 603,690 83,677 687,367 787,539 (100,172)
[8]:1115 1SRN ' 671,411 5,132 676,543 4,348 680,891 861,727 (120,836)
Contracted repairs........ 205,036 (44,899) 160,137 50,163 210,300 281,556 (71,256)
Debt service payments.......... 607,545 3,558,444 4,165,989 - 4,165,989 4,165,990 1)
Other contracted services...... 1,822,058 (73,780} 1,748,278 221,148 1,969,426 2,675,101 (705,675)
Total contractual services.... 3,938,737 3,415,900 7,354,637 359,336 7,713,973 8,711,913 (997,940}
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES - 5,478,764 35,478,764 3,766,939 9,245,703 10,500,722 (1,255,019}
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 7,551,117 (7,5351,117) - - - - -
Totals oo _$ 18,193,586 § 1253308 § 19446894 § 4239524 § 23.686418 § 26810817 § (3.124.399)

(1) State of Indiana budgetary compliance requires cash expenditures plus purchase commitments not to exceed anmual appropriations.
(2) Balance equals funds not comrnitied by the Authority,
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STATISTICAL
SECTION

This part of the Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report represents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Authority’s overall financial

health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends Data 66
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
Authority’s financial position has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 70
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Authority’s
ability to generate its most significant revenues.

Debt Capacity 78
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the Authority’s

current debt level and its ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information 82
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial activities
take place.

Operating Information 84

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Authority’s financial report relates to
the services the Authority provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Annual Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
L:ast Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis)
Revenues; 2013 2012 2011 2010
Alrfield. . 8 1,618,892 $ 1475574 % 1,461,088 % 1,361,743
Buildings and grounds............cooooiiiinnnl. 2,097,557 1,867,646 1,311,808 1,051,735
Terminal........oooiiiii e 2,944,923 3,056,045 3,065,071 3,096,831
Parking..cccoovec i 2,829,131 2,695,420 2,625,381 2,620,565
Reliever airport......vveveeeiriiiiniiiinienanns 435,800 464,820 443,839 420,083
9,926,309 9,559,505 8,907,187 8.550,957
Interest....oovviii e e 76,289 94,787 102,068 162,487
Property and other taxes......ccocvviviriiinrnrnens 6,674,720 6,713,816 6,310,443 6,783,287
Federal operating grant.............ocoovvevnennen. - 84,766 312,639 131,891
Passenger facility charge.....cooeveiiiiiininnns 1,215,576 1,138,258 1,099,255 1,102,936
Customer facility charge...............ccoeveenen.. 244,493 210,792 32,229 -
Gain (Loss) on disposat of capital assets........ 9,811 20,395 235,461 (409,452}
Total Fevenues. .o..vveeiiiiiiiiieeiieiaean 18,147,198 17,822,319 16,999,282 16,322,106
Expenses:
Salaries. ..\ iuvurvreiire e 3,685,895 3,853,582 3,901,809 3,859,843
Benefits....ooiviiiiii e 1,770,599 1,768,080 1,710,328 1,529,207
THIHEEES. e 671,411 643,569 653,524 626,467
Supplies and other services.........cccoeuinnn.. 3,907.019 3,413,869 3,468.209 3,115,806
Depreciation...........occoiiiiiviciiiin 7,551,117 7,559,693 7,852,015 8,440,999
Total operating expenses..........ooovveveneenss. 17,586,041 17,238,793 17,585,885 17,572,384
Interest. e e 607,545 731,133 883,650 1,103,069
Total eXpenses.....coeeeeeiiiiiiiceeieieeiinn, 18,193,586 17,969,926 18,469,535 18,675,453
Capital contributions..........covceviiiiiininnannn, 3,188,668 2,749,565 1,962,373 6,461,612
Increase (Decrease) in net position.............. $ 3,142,280 $ 2,601,958 § 492,120 § 4,108,265
Net position at year end is composed of:
Net Investment in capital assets................. $ 86,439,074 $ 84,742,931 § 80,453,062 § 82,143,769
Restricted. .. ovvevrvrveniiiinn e 10,272,065 8,995,490 9,288,875 12,260,528
Unrestricted.......c.oovveeiiiiiiniiiieeeeenns 14,266,614 14,097,052 15,491,578 10,380,330
Total net position.............covvvviiiininnnnnns $ 110,977,753 $ 107835473 § 105233515 § 104784627

Source: Authority's audited financial statements.
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
b 1,429,261 1,300,430 5 1,987,586 $ 2,516,471 2,355,553 2,372,285
1,344,797 1,074,401 2,751,377 3,158,585 3,194,286 3,217,660
3,216,115 2,974,312 3,003,368 3,009,862 3,067,835 3,096,247
2,460,847 2,234,673 2,063,274 1,912,344 1,947,262 1,992,504
402,031 472,174 3,450 10,188 10,166 10,355
8,856,051 8,055,990 9,809,055 10,607,450 10,575,102 10,689,051
344,026 586,039 708,481 875,498 653,412 347,459
7,477,987 4,472,751 4,438,807 4,307,566 4,009,893 4,221,616
130,869 133,531 32,976 - - 332,513
1,031,684 1,114,786 1,136,120 1,059,924 812,956 887.160
- 41,302 21,617 64,985 184,937 -
17,840,617 14,404,399 16,147,056 16,915,423 16,296,300 16,477,799
4,040,982 4,032,946 3,689,607 3,263,059 3,103,932 3,053,622
1,659,885 1,683,232 1,457,312 1,366,665 1,261,433 1,025,317
634,279 713,684 548,287 499,924 474,522 438,094
3,106,021 3,192,897 3,261,589 2,780,524 3,486,298 3,827,577
8,316,488 8,212,367 8,510,935 8,064,551 7,764,453 7,787,031
17,757,655 17,835,126 17,467,730 15,974,723 16,090,638 16,131,641
1,234,672 1,358,583 1,447,799 1,655,703 1,740,318 2,256,248
18,992,327 19,193,709 18,915,529 17,630,426 17,830,956 18,387,889
6,333,715 2,747,422 573,692 7,999,576 5,098,268 3,350,896
b 5,182,005 (2,041,888) 5 (2,194,781) $ 7,284,373 3,563,612 1,440,806
3 79,747,527 77,203,394 $ 78,495,625 b 80,087,834 71,421,904 66,434,837
16,956,010 8,526,620 6,950,303 12,174,175 6,858,838 5,955,696
9,929,593 9,721,111 12,047,085 7,425,783 14,122,479 16,449,076
$ 100,633,130 95,451,125 $ 97,493,013 b 99,687,794 92,403,221 88,839,609




FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Principal Revenue Sources, Cost per Enplaned Passenger and Airline Rates and Charges
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2012 2011 2010
Operating Revenues:
Adrfield.. ... $ 143,519 $ 88,432 $ 87,860 $ 85,097
Passenger airline service charge revenues:
LAnding fEe8. . vvniriiiiiie e 790,258 801,832 838,598 771,177
Jetway rental.. ..., - - - 60,060
B ) < 133,522 146,711 117,859 93,771
Terminal rent.........coooiiiiii e 1,388,401 1,540,790 1,617,504 1,695,299
BOATdIng SECULIEY .+ ee v veee oo oo e oo oot reees s 192,706 183,463 193,652 199,381
PASYSI@M. ..., - - - 1,152
Air Trade Center cargo airline service charge revenues: '
Landing fees. oo - - - -
APIon fees.. it - - - -
BUilding TeTE. ... vv v vvvvnvrnesiiniesrssra s carasi s anenns 987,752 586,014 165,282 -
L€ e s 11 F N 46,613 135,000 163,910 -
Landing fees-other Cargo....ovcvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiinia i ieenanns 550,936 438,301 416,731 413,725
Building and grounds. ... 777,341 811,403 706,890 774,349
Terminal... ..o 270,393 250,162 236,029 236,144
Carvental. ..o e 958,629 965,279 913,857 797,778
Restaurant.......oooviiiniiiiii e 123,007 116,351 111,624 97,557
Parking. ..ot et 2,829,131 2,695,420 2,625,381 2,609,642
Famming.......ccoooiiiiii 298,295 334,927 268,131 297,769
Reliever airport.......ooiiiii 435,306 464,820 443,839 420,083
Total operating FEVenUEs. ... vevrvavarrrarareariierrnriraninins 9,926,309 9,559,505 8,907,187 8,552,984
Non-operating revenues;
TRtErest OB ..ove it vt eas 76,289 94,787 102,068 162,487
Property and other taXe8. ..ot 6,674,720 6,713,816 6,310,443 6,783,287
FAA operating Srant............coooiiiiiiiiieiiniisieiaaans - 84,766 312,639 131,891
Passenger facility charge............cocoiiiiiiiiii e, 1,215,576 1,138,258 1,099,255 1,102,936
Customer facility charge,.........o.oooviiiiiiircens 244,493 210,792 32,229 -
Gain on disposal of capital assets.........coeviviiiiiinnnen, 9,811 20,395 235,461 -
Total non-0perating revVenues. ......ovvviiiveiiirerirasanns 8,220,889 8,262,814 8,092,095 8,180,601
Total 1eVenues. ........coiiiiiiiiirei e ea e $ 18,147,198 $17.822.319 $ 16,999,282 $ 16,733,585
Enplaned passegers. ....cocceieeiiiiiiiiii e 298,661 284.465 277,938 277,101
Passenger airline cost per enplaned passenger................... $ 8.39 $ 9.40 3 9.96 $ 10.18
Signatory airfines rates and charges (1);
Landing fee (per 1,000 lbs. of max. gross landed weight)..... $ 2.45 5 2.45 $ 244 b 2.40
Apron fee (per 1,000 Ibs of max. gross landed weight)........ 0.42 0.45 0.34 0.29
Annual terminal rental rate {per square foot), ..o, 30.61 33.91 34.80 36.61
Revenue Fanding Ratios;
Parking revenne/comumissions per enplaned passenger (2).... § 9.47 3 9.48 $ 9.45 $ 9.42
Car rental commissions per enplaned passenger................ 3.21 3.39 3.29 2,88
Restaurant commissions per enplaned passenger.............., 041 0.41 0.40 0.35

Notes: (1) Rates and charges are calculated based upon the Airport Use and Lease Agreement.

(2) The Authority changed from a concessions agreement to a management agreement for its parking lot operations on October 1, 2008,

Source: Authority's audited financial staternents, and rates and charges reports.
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$ 80,212 § 105,077 $ 150,318 $ 114,741 $ 125,048 $ 127,092
777,156 742,078 708,285 708,779 810,523 772,745
61,140 68,410 74,700 86.770 67,900 61,050
98,110 79,058 99,430 98,459 127,494 119,553
1,742,964 1,496,500 1,575,750 1,542,946 1,710,820 1,608,441
186,484 156,450 155,153 169,006 164,476 155,193
1,216 1,504 1,536 1,536 1.504 2,080
84,106 - 546,868 1,041,899 905,647 1,003,269
- - 43,970 52,765 56,856 54,411
214,364 85,000 1,527,754 2,025,300 2,025,300 2,025,360
- - 201,957 214,734 208,424 203,338
389,676 374,216 438,715 499,828 329,985 295,215
849,470 829,016 862,507 763,330 807,303 858,527
233,305 244,209 251,575 292.350 230,078 150,258
890,941 896,925 833,162 814,862 782,533 1,002,472
87,323 110,274 111,493 102,392 110,524 116,753
2,460,847 2,234,673 2,063,274 1,912,344 1,947,262 1,992,504
296,706 160,386 159,158 155,221 153,259 130,495
402,031 472,174 3,450 10,188 10,166 10,355
8,856,051 8,055,990 9,809,055 10,607,450 10,575,102 10,689,051
344,026 586,039 708,481 875,498 653,412 347,459
7,477,987 4,472,751 4,438,807 4,307,566 4,069,893 4,221,616
130,869 133,531 32,976 - - 332,513
1,031,684 1,114,786 1,136,120 1,059,924 812,956 887,160
- 41,302 21,617 64,985 184,937 -
8,984,566 6,348,409 6,338,001 6,307,973 3,721,198 5,788,748

$ 17,840,617

5 14,404,399

$ 16,147,056

$ 16,915,423

§ 16,296,300

$ 16,477,799

266,176 287,343 298,639 274,889 316,339 338,681

$ 10.77 $ 8.85 $ 8.76 $ 9.4% b 8.11 $ 8.03
$ 2.30 3 2,06 $ 1.86 $ 1.83 $ 1.77 $ 1.63
0.29 0.22 0.26 0.25 0.28 0.25

38.44 35.77 36.27 3224 32.70 32.26

b3 9.25 $ 1.78 $ 6.91 $ 6.96 $ 6.16 b 5.88
3.35 3.12 2.79 2.96 2.47 2.96

0.33 0.38 0.37 0.37 0.35 0.34
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Allen County
Principal Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2013
Percent of Percent of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Principal Taxpayers - Name Valuation (1) Valuation Valuation {2) Rank  Valuation
General Motors Corp....oovenveenvennn... $ 236,238,040 ] 1.8 $ 187,835,480 1 1.3
GGP-Glenbrrok=LL1C.........ovvvenvennnns 177,681,300 2 1.4 114,700,800 3 0.8
IOM Health Systems............cooveheen 143,186,140 3 1.1 69,007,150 6 0.5
Indiana Michigan Power.................. 139,773,380 4 1.1 110,710,969 4 0.8
Frontier North Inc.......oovveenvnnenin..n 107,617,210 5 0.8

Parkview Health System Inc.............. 78,350,726 6 0.6

Walmart Stores East LP/RE Bus......... 76,470,720 7 0.6

Frontier Communications Online & LI, 75,963,810 g 0.6

Uniroyal BF Goodrich..................... 61,657,700 9 0.5 70,159,470 5 0.5

St Joseph Health System LEC............ 61,593,490 10 0.5

Verizon North Inc....ooooviiviiininnnn, 161,388,790 2 1.1

| L T OO 57,625,260 7 0.4
Verizon Data Services......ooovvriinnanas 56,553,910 8 0.4
Regency Canterbury LP....oooenannnnn.n. 54,224,130 9 0.4
ITT Corporation...........covveiirrnnrenns 50,256,380 10 04
Total of Ten Largest Taxpayers.......... $ 1,158,532,516 9.1 $ 932,462,339 6.6

(1) Represents assessed valuations for taxes due and payable in 2013.
(2) Represents assessed valnations for taxes due and payable in 2004.

Source: Allen County Auditor's Office.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

{Cash Basis)
2013 2012 2011 2010
Operating excise tax $ 266,372 $ 271,389 $ 260,647 $ 249,758
Adircraft excise tax............. 18,088 18,307 18,071 16,382
Operating intangibles taxk......ccoovecevernvirinennne 15,321 15,256 16,277 15,125
Operating property taX.... o creceecveeeseensns 3,301,247 3,253,654 3,212,343 3,151,024
Operating commercial vehicle taX.......ovieene, 18,037 17,681 18,065 17,016
Cumulative building property 1aX.....ococevreeenns 376,959 357,671 384,085 399,938
Cumulative building eXcisSe taX.....oerecervnvirernnns 30,416 29,833 31,164 ‘ 31,700
Cumulative building comumercial vehicle tax... 2,060 1,944 2,160 2,160
Cumulative building intangibles tax......ccovenn. 1,750 1,677 1,946 1,920
County option income tax 793,049 783,478 598,423 " 1,015,608
Debt service property tax...... 1,702,027 1,788,356 1,606,172 1,781,540
Debt service eXeise taX....ooeveeeveieereeeeereereene 137,334 149,167 130,324 141,210
Debt service cormmercial vehicle tax............ 9,299 9,718 9,032 9,620
Debt service intangibles ta%. ..o oo reninrininns 7,899 8,386 8,138 8,552
Total Authority taxX receiptS...c.ovvrveevvenerinnes $ 6,679,858 $ 6,706,517 $ 6,296,847 $ 6,841,553
Rate per $100 of assessed valuation............... 0.0471 0.0468 0.0447 0.0440

{1) All tax receipts are shown on a cash basis.
{2) Due to a delay in reassessment, tax receipts for 2004 included $1,608,192 from the 2003 tax levy.

Allen County Property Tax
Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2013 2012 2011 2010
Total taX 1EVY...vvereeeeresecer e irirenes $ 331,494,358 $ 324,449,495 $ 316,973,671 $ 319,525,460
Current 1ax collections (2).....cocovererreeerereres 321,700,333 313,264,561 306,407,599 307,284,280
Percent of levy coflected.....coeer i 97.0% 96.6% 96.7% 96.2%
Delinquent tax collections........ccvcerereirerennn: $ 9,896,607 $  9,423.276 $ 7492374 % 5437834
Total tax collectionsS. .. .e e eeeeeieseiesenns 331,596,940 322,687,837 313,899,973 312,722,114
Percent of total tax collections 0 levy............. 100.0% 99.5% 99.0% 97.9%
Outstanding delinguent tAxes. ....ovvvvverveeivererens 12,265,024 $ 14,007,744 $ 13,781,018 $ 15.892,667

Percent of delinguent 14235 10 16¥Y. v vvvevieninns 17% 4.3% 4.3% 5.0%

{1) The Authority does not maintain records of tax delinquencies, All taxes are collected
and distributed by the Allen County Auditor.

(2) Taxes collected in subsequent years was not available.

Source: Allen County Auditor's office
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 (2)
$ 250,714 § 252375 $ 251464 § 250611 8 260,396  § 351912
17,134 19,726 15,777 20,780 21,196 20,175
12,438 26,446 26,217 26,570 26,464 52,879
3,154,607 3,113,273 3,052,156 2,953,015 2,806,723 3,859,042
14,504 27,753 26,431 25,343 24,041 44,178
421,466 513,690 503,606 460,045 454,029 726,709
33,496 41,642 41,492 39,382 42,123 65,129
1,938 4,579 4,361 3,083 3,889 7,754
1.662 4,363 4,325 4175 4,281 9,287
577,664 468,904 485,097 525,511 430,294 563,196
2,669,282
212,142
12,272
10,524
$ 7389843 § 4472751 $ 4410926 § 4309415 § 4073436 $ 5700261
0.0489 0.0233 0.0233 0.0243 0.0237 0.0225
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$ 337.853.052  $468378,102 S 450,324,056  $ 423,667,496  $ 404,939,852  $392,189.991
322,439,869 454,185,187 433,282,315 411,472,985 392,526,880 377,612,575
95.4% 97.0% 96.2% 97.1% 96.9% 96.3%
$ 12026170 $ 10843230 $ 16618199 § 9072693 § 6,754,184  $ 4320258
334,466,039 465,028,417 449,900,514 420,545,678 399,281,064 381,932,833
99.0% 99.3% 99.9% 99.3% 98.6% 97 4%
$ 19209633  $ 18,780,143  § 23314369  $ 15360588 § 16878058  § 22.056911
5.7% 4.0% 5.2% 3.6% £2% 5.6%



FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Assessed Values of Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years (2)

Allen County 2013 2012 2011 2010

Total assessed value (1}.......ooooeinniiiiinnn, $ 12,780,412,897 $ 12,741,704,078 $ 12,674,957.960 $ 13,112,944,238

(1) Assessed values for personal property are updated annually.

(2) Source: Allen County Auditor's Office.

Property Tax Rates and Tax Levies
Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Years (2)
Allen County 2013 2012 2011 2010
Rates per $100 of assessed valuation (1):
Adrport Authority Direct Rates
OPEFANG. ... eeeeeee e cer e $ 0.0280 § 0.0282 b 0.0276 $ 0.0260
Cumulative Building..........c..ccooieenie 0.0033 0.0031 0.0033 0.0033
Debt Service....oovvviveiiiiiniiicnnnnen 0.0149 0,0155 0.0138 0.0147
Fotal directrates..........oveveriimniininininn 0.0471 0.0468 0.0447 0.0440
Other municipal corporations.................. 0.2471 0.2437 0.2365 0.2234
School districts...........cooovviiiiiniiiniennes 1.0379 0.9519 0.9765 0.9201
Allen County.....cooviiiiiinennineiiininniainnn, 0.5404 0.5279 0.5155 0.5187
City of Fort Wayne..........ococoiiiniinii, 0.8295 0.8320 0.8365 0.7880
State of Indiana.........covviveviiciniiiiiieinnn - - - -
Other. ..o 1.1337 0.1281 0.1178 0.1110
Totals.....covviiiiiiiiici e 5 2.8358 % 2.7304 $ 2.7275 3 2.6052
Levies:
Airport Authotity.......ocooviiniinvenn e $ 6,019,575 § 5,963,118 $ 5,665,706 $ 5,769,696
Other municipal corporations.................. 31,585,725 31,048,245 29.974.604 29,291,300
Sehool districts..co.ovveviniiiiii 132,650,109 121,283,379 123,771,008 120,653,166
Allen County......ooooviviiiiiiiiii e 69,065,351 67,263,457 65,339,408 68,016,841
City of Fort Wayne.......voeeevnciiinineninnnnnn. 106,014,596 106,017,165 106,024,105 103,327,209
State of Indiana. .......coveiiiiin e - - - -
Other..vvvi i 17,088,049 16,316,212 14,936,479 14,558,483
Totals...ccoviiiiniiiiiiii e $ 362,423,805 ¥ 347.891,576 § 345711310 $ 341,616,695

(1) School districts, the City, municipal corporations, and other rates represent countywide averages.
(2) Source: Allen County Auditor's Office
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2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

$13,297,615,974

$15,850,468,135

$15,270,870,10%

$ 14,061,977,670

$13,932,934,665

$14,211,493,429

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

$ 0.0247 § 0.0200 b 0.0200 b 0.0210 $ 0.0204 5 0.0192
0.0033 0.0033 0.0033 0.0033 0.0033 0.0033

0.0209 - - - - -
0.0489 0.0233 0.0233 0.0243 0.0237 0.0225
0.2145 0.1736 0.1744 (.1841 0.1806 0.1629
0.8986 1.4403 1.3876 1.5274 1.4790 1.4768
0.4638 0.5795 0.5343 0.5675 0.5452 0.4945
0.7484 0.6274 0.6512 0.5871 0.5566 0.5188
- 0.0205 0.0206 0.0239 0.0235 0.0024
0.1159 0.0922 0.09135 0.0991 0.1011 0.0817
$ 2.4902 3 29567 § 2.8829 $ 3.0133 $ 2.9098 $ 27597
§ 6,502,534 $ 3,693,159 $ 3,558,113 b3 3,417,060 $ 3,302,106 $ 3,197,586
28.526,107 27,512,551 26,639,938 25,888,641 25,169,342 23,150,614
119,496,983 228,289,216 211,904,942 214,781,057 206,066,666 209,871,643
61,673,323 91,851,010 81,596,517 79,801,724 75,962,361 70,275,834
99,523,973 99,440,267 99,440,911 82,560,277 77,554,663 73,735,533
- 3,249,346 3,145,800 3,360,193 3,273,613 341,076
15,414,198 14,608,308 13,972,693 13,938,331 14,092,706 11,617,705

$ 331,137,118

$ 468,643,857

$  440,258.914

§ 423,747,283

$ 405,421,457

$ 392189991
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Allen County
Property Values and Construction
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Building Permits (1)

Number Value of Average Property

Issued Buildings Building Cost Value (2)
2013, o, 845 $ 187,009,335 § 221,313 § 12,780,412,897
2012, 705 154,256,028 218,803 12,741,704,078
2011l 657 121,972,417 185,651 12,674,957,960
2010...cccivienen. 706 122,188,517 173,072 13,112,944,238
2009, 655 112,930,358 172,413 13,297,615,974
2008.............. 632 117,262,580 185,542 15,850,468,135
2007 .o, 1,034 176,636,110 170,828 15,270,870,109
2006.............. 1,167 205,597,856 176,176 14,061,977.670
200500 1,742 310,649,789 178,329 13,932,934,665
2004, 1,799 306,494,445 170,369 14,211,493,429

Notes: (1) New single-family residences and duplexes

(2) Property value is the assessed value for taxes due and payable in the vear stated.

Source: Allen County Building Department and Allen County Auditor's Office.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY ATRPORT AUTHORITY

Ratios of Outstanding Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2012 2011 2010
Outstanding debt per enplaned passenger
Tax backed revenue bonds (1):
Airport Improvement Bonds (2)............ 3 1,055,000 $ 3,117,614 $ 5,066,685 ) 6,851,989
First Mortgage Bonds (2)......oovvvvinennn. 11,033,000 12,500,000 13,935,000 14,984,704
Revenue Bonds (2)...oovvevviviiiiiiinnns, - - - -
Non-interest bearing loan...................... - - - -
Financing agreement............cocvvenicennenn - - - -
Total outstanding debt..............coooviieen.n. $ 12,090,000 $ 15617614 $ 19,001,685 § 21,936,693
Enplaned passengers....ovveeeeeerireieneineennns 298,661 284,465 277,938 277,101
Debt per enplaned passenger............c...o... 5 40.48 $ 54.90 $ 68.37 b 79.16
Debt service per enplaned passenger
Net debt service. ...ooviviiii i $ 4,169,927 $ 4,132,603 $ 4,263,259 $ 4,174,816
Enplaned passengers.........ocovvvviicinarienenns 298,661 284,465 277,938 277,101
Debt service per enplaned passenger............ h3 13.96 $ 14.53 $ 15.34 b 15.07

Notes: Details regarding the Authority's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1} Tax-backed bonds are revenue bonds backed by ad valorem taxes that would be levied if airport revenues are insufficient.
(2) Bond balances from 2004 to 2011 have been restated to remove unamortized deferred amount on refunding in accordance
with GASB Statement 05.
Source: Authority's audited financial statements
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
8,774,257 10,535,215 12,254,179 13,831,074 15,350,349 16,148,920
16,177,003 17,313,911 18,394,288 19,428,207 20,411,069 21,353,932
- - - 1,443,497 2,116,301 3,132,230
- 16,600 33,200 49,800 66,400 83,000
24,951,260 27,865,726 30,681,667 34,752,578 37,944,119 40,718,082
266,176 287,343 298,639 274,889 316,339 338,681
93.74 96.98 102.74 126.42 115.95 120.23
4,086,272 4,100,183 5,487,179 4,752,303 4,470,762 5,482,530
266,176 287,343 208,639 274,889 316,339 338,681
15.35 14.27 18.37 17.29 14.13 16,19
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2012 2011 2010
1995 and 1998 Revenue Bonds:
(3088 TEVEIUES. ... .evevererrirvirrnrerararsriinineeiranees $ 18,147,198 $ 17,822,319 $ 16,999,282 $ 16,742,569
Less:
Building rental revenue (13........cooivviviiiniiinn - - 152,552 -
Passenger facility charge.........o.ooviiiiiieinieninn, 1,215,576 1,138,258 1,699,255 1,102,936
Customer facility charge............coooeeiiiiiiin 244,493 210,792 32,229 -
Gain on disposal of capital assets.................ov... 9,811 20,395 235,461 -
Operating expenses {(2).........covivirirneiienenrannnnns 10,034,924 9,679,100 9,733,870 9,140,132
11,504,804 11,048,545 11,253,367 10,243,068
Net revenues available.............ooooiiiiiniiiniiienens 3  6,642394 $ 6,773,774 b 5,745,915 % 6,499,501
Debt Service
Prineipal......o.oooeiiiiiiiie e $ - $ - $ - $ -
INterest. ... - - - -
TFotal debt SErVICE. . ..uvvieriririinsiersievimiseeaiaeeeenns $ - $ - $ - $ -
Debt service coverage..........ocovvviiiiiiiiinicniieans - - - -
1998 First Mortgage Bonds (3) and
2011 First Mortgage Taxable Refunding Bonds
(GEOSS TEVEIUES . ... eeriesirssitiereasrerrsreenaasines 3 - $ - b 152,552 $ -
Debt Service
Principal........cooiiiiii v $ 1,465,000 $ 1,435,000 $ 1,400,000 3 1,205,000
Tnterest. e 535,427 564,790 720,947 818,316
Total debt SErVICE. .. ..iiiiri i iner e rrnaias $ 2,000,427 $ 1,999,790 $ 2,120,947 S 2,023,316
Debt Service COVEIaZE. ... vvrvvirireriaernnrerinerineeenns - - 0.07 -

Notes: (1) Building rental revenue from a cargo carrier is pledged to the 1998 First Mortgage Bonds or 2011 First Mortgage Taxable Refunding Bonds.
1 building rental revenue is insufficient, then the levy of an ad valorem tax is mandatory. The Authority began levying property taxes in 2009,
(2) Operating expenses exclude depreciation expense

(3) The 1998 First Morigage Bonds were refunded with the 2011 First Mortgage Taxable Refunding Bonds on February 24, 2011.

Scurce: Authority’s audited financial statements and bond trust indentures,
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$  17.840,617 14,404,399 16,147,056 16,915,423 16,296,300  § 16,477,799
214,364 85.000 1,527,754 2,025,300 2,025,300 2,025,300
1,031,684 1,114,786 1,136,120 1,059,924 812,956 887,160

- 41,302 21,617 - 184,937 .

9,441,167 9,622,759 8,956,795 7,910,172 8,326,185 8,344,610
10,687,215 10,863,847 11,642,286 10,995,396 11,349,378 11,257,070

$  7,153.402 3,540,552 4,504,770 5,920,027 4946922 $ 5220729
$ - . 705,000 675,000 1,020,000 § 965,000
- - 26,140 74,701 111,470 165,432

$ - - 731,140 749,701 1,131470  $ 1,130,432
- - 6.16 7.90 437 4.62

$ 214,364 85,000 1,527,754 2,025,300 2,025,300 $  2,025300
$ 1,150,000 1,095,000 1,050,000 1,000,000 960,000  $ 920,000
873,846 925,191 973,951 1,014,664 1,058,545 1,100,107

$ 2023846 2,020,191 2,023,951 2,014,664 2,018,545 5 2,020,107
0.11 0.04 0.75 1.01 1.00 1.00
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Allen County Demographic and Economic Statistics

Personal Income Per Capita Unemployment
Year Population (1) (2) (Thousands) (2} Personal Income (2) Rate (3)
2013 363,014 N/A N/A 73 %
2012 360,412 § 13,469,114 5 37,371 7.9
2011 358,536 12,830,031 35,784 9.1
2010 355,795 12,078,402 33,948 . 10.3
2009 353,693 11,860,261 33,533 10.2
2008 351,264 12,255,906 34,891 6.0
2007 349,534 12,085,828 34,577 4.7
2006 346,314 11,736,144 33,889 4.9
2003 343,238 10,990,868 32,021 5.2
2004 340,916 10,786,245 31,639 5.2

N/A - Not Available

(1) Source: U.S. Census Bureau: 2010 - Census figures; all other years are July 1 intercensal estimates, statistics

for prior years have been updated to reflect current estimates,

{(2) Source: U.S. Department of Commeree, Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA). Per capita personal income was
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computed by the BEA using midyear population estimates, Statistics for prior years bave been updated
to reflect current estimates.
(3) Source: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics




FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Alen County
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2013 2004
Percent of Percent of

Principal Employers - Name Employees Rank  Total Employment  Employees Rank Total Employment
Parkview Health Systems.................. 4,710 1 2.7 Yo 4,254 1 2.4 %
Lutheran Health Networle................. 4,301 2 2.5 2,889 3 1.9
Fort Wayne Community Schools......... 4,230 3 2.4 3,445 2 1.6
General Motors - Truck & Bus Group... 3,909 4 2.2 2,847 4 1.6
Lincoln Financial Group.............o..... 1,970 6 1.1 2,000 5 i1
The City of Fort Wayne.................... 1,814 5 1.0 1,671 7 1.1
Allen County Government................ 1,605 7 0.9 1,993 6 0.9
BF Goodrich......ccoivvviriiiiieiieenees, 1,580 8 0.9
TPE W .o itiie et et 1,235 9 0.7
ITT EXelise.oniniiiiieniinanieiieneeeen, 1,165 10 0.7
ITT Aerospace-Communications Div.. ., 1,634 8 0.9
Shambaugh & SONS......ccoevvevrnniniinin 1,500 9 0.8
SIRVA. ..ot 1,500 10 0.8
Total of Ten Largest Employers.......... 26,539 15.1 % 23,733 13.1 %

Source: the Community Research Institue of IPFW and the Bureau of Labor Statistics.
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
Fort Wayne International Airport Informatien

Airport Classification: Primary Commercial Service Airport
Airfield Size: 3,899 Acres Owned Fee Simple

Runway System (and Equipment)} 2013 2012 2011 2010
Primary Runway

Runway 5-23 NE to SW (150" Wide) (Cat. I1, ILS} Length - Feet, .. 11,981 11,981 11,981 11,981
Secondary Runways

Runway 14-32 SE to NW (150" Wide)(Cat T, ILS) Length - Feet.... 8,001 8,001 8,001 8,001

Runway 09-27 East to West (75" Wide) Length - Feet................ 4,001 4,601 4,001 4,001

Terminal Complex

Total Space (SGFeet). .o s 114,813 114,813 114,813 114,813
Rentable Space (SgFeet) .o 104,505 104,505 104,505 104,505
Airline Exclusive Space (SqFeet).....cooviiiiiininicriirnicinininn, 6,059 6,059 6,059 6,059
Common Space (S Feet). ..o 39,557 39,557 39,557 39,557
Restaurant Space (Sq Fect).....coocoviiiiin 7.858 7,858 7,858 7,858
Car Rental Space (SGFel). . ouviiririiririnireiiia i eiraneracns 1,536 1,536 1,536 1,536
Taxi/Limousine Space (Sq Feet).......occviriiiiiiiinirsrecrenens 384 384 384 768
Passenger Gates......oovee i e 8 8 8 8
Jetway Boarding Bridges.......ooviriiiiiniiii i 4 4 4 4
Regional Boarding RAMPS....c.uvvviriiieriiiiimrirenvseiniriieevaeenns 1 1 1 1
Passenger AITTNes. . ..vviiiiieiini e e e 4 4 4 4
Daily Departures. . ..vov e 19 18 I8 18
Car Rental FIMms....cooviiviiiiniiniiniies e e 8 8 6 6
Parking Spaces........c.oviviiiieininnns e rer et 2,167 2,167 2,167 2,167
Air Trade Center
Land Area - Acres (Includes 85 in Foreign Trade Zone)............... 450 450 450 450
Cargo Sorting Facility (SqFeet) ..o 250,299 250,299 250,299 250,299
Operations Building (SqFeet).. .o iiivviiiiccei e 33,429 33,429 33,429 33,429
Maintenance Building (SqFeet)....covovviivininiiiiniiiinn, 10,280 10,280 10,280 10,280
Ancillary Services
Cargo AITINES..oivereiirviern s erear e s rea e an e 2 2 2 2
General Aviation

Fixed Base Operators. ... ocov.veeean e ieeeiee e eeemeeeeeenen 1 1 1 I

Based AIrerall....ocovivioiiiii 54 54 54 55
Military Based AIrcrafl, . ..o.veoeiiioieie s eesvee v e e iaanes 20 18 18 21
Airpark Buildings Ownied.....oooviiiiin e 27 27 27 27
Employees
Administration Full-time. ... 16 15 i6 16
Administration Part-time. .....c.ooociiiiiiii 1 1 1 2
Maintenance FRl-LME. ... rer e rreens 16 17 6 18
Maintenance Seasonal........couviiviiiiieieiriieiir i 6 5 6 10
Custodial Full-time. ..o 3 7 7 6
Public Safety Full-time. ..o e e e 11 12 12 11
Public Safety Part-timie. .....o.oe vt 22 16 16 13
CSA Part-tlme. ..o e e 8 8 8 9
Smith Field FullMIme. ..o 2 2 2 1
Smith Field Part-tme. . ...oocvviiiiiniiiiiniiicaiean, 2 2 2 2
Operations Fuil-time. ... 4 4 4 -
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
11,981 11,981 11,981 11,981 12,000 12,000
8,001 8,001 8,001 8,001 8,001 8,001
4,001 4,001 4,001 4,001 4,001 4,001
114,813 114,813 114,813 114,813 114,813 114,813
104,505 104,505 104,505 104,505 104,505 104,505
6,059 14,373 14,373 14,373 14,373 14,373
39,557 38,123 38,468 38,468 38,468 38,468
7,858 7,858 7,858 7,858 7,858 7,858
1,536 1,920 1,920 1,920 1,920 1,920
384 384 384 384 384 384

8 8 8 8 8 8

4 4 4 4 4 4

1 1 1 1 ] 1

5 6 6 5 5 6

28 25 33 33 35 37

5 5 5 5 5 5

2,167 2,167 2,167 2,068 2,068 1,485
450 450 450 450 450 450
250,299 250,299 250,299 250,299 250,299 250,299
33,429 33,429 33,429 33,429 33,429 33,429
10,280 10,280 10,280 10,280 10,280 10,280
2 2 3 3 3 3

1 i 1 1 1 2

64 68 66 68 69 78

17 15 15 15 15 15

27 27 27 27 2 22

18 18 19 18 18 17

2 1 1 1 1 2

19 19 19 19 19 19

10 10 10 9 10 10

7 7 8 8 8 8

12 13 13 13 13 13

13 14 13 16 - .

8 9 9 . - -

2 3 3 - - -

2 2 . . - ;
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRFORT AUTHORITY

Fort Wayne International Airport
Enplaned Passengers
(Listed by Current Rank)

Percent
of Total
Airline 2013 2013 2012 2011 2010
Endeavor Air-Delta/Northwest Airlink....... 106,034 35.50 % 95,552 93,168 85.836
American Eagle...........ccocooon, 75,798 25.38 78.346 73,427 67,379
Allegiant Alr........oovvviininiininieeeees 61,699 20.66 48,412 41,641 43,537
Skywest-Delta/United Express................. 33,461 11.20 35,884 33,995 40,689
Expressjet-Delta Express........oocoovviiniian, 19,901 6.66 23,023 7.972 14,933
Charter.........ooo 1,768 0.59 1,590 1,336 1,842
Comair (1), v --- --- 1,658 25,862 9,928
Mesaba-Delta/Northwest Airlink (1).......... - -~ -— 245 8,633
Chautaugua- Delta Express (1)..........cooouee ——— - -— 92 4,324
Continental Connection-Commutair(1}....... - - - - —
Mesa Airlines-United Express (1)............. - . e - -
Adr Wisconsin (1)....oovieviviiininiiennenn, - - - — ——
Chicago Express- ATA Connection (1)....... - - e — ——
~Atlantic Coast (1)......oooviiiiiniiniinnnne. - -- - — -
Shuttle America (1).......coociiiivieniiiiininnn. —- — — — -
Total.. oo 298,661 100.00 % 284,465 277,938 277,101
Percentage change.................ocoiiinns 4.99% 2.35% 0.30% 4.10%

{1) No longer serves Fort Wayne International Airport.

Source: Compiled from airline station managers’ monthly reports.

86



2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
47,446 38,689 41,845 43,170 43,774 51,826
62,818 73,304 83,863 74,913 77,308 70,897
37,220 37,332 35,288 - — -
24,804 13,663 15,063 28,991 21,842 27,301
31,511 39,007 36,115 20,564 44,601 23,540

1,963 1,587 1,084 801 1,788 1,858
3,133 - 14 15,545 55,600 43,168
11,240 13,936 7,677 12,604 22,198 18,754
30,854 35,076 39,253 43,188 - 9,914
8,799 16,112 13,115 12,352 12,099 10,539
6,388 18,637 25,322 23,846 8,009 --=
— - -— --- 25,190 6,344
— --- — - 3,930 17,001
— — — — e 41,913
— --- — - — 15,626
266,176 287,343 298,639 275,974 316,339 338,681
-7.37% -3.78% 8.21% -12.76% -6.60% 10.65%
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Fort Wayne Tnternational Airport
Airline Landing Weights (2)
{Listed by Current Rank Within Category)

Percent
of Total

Scheduled Air Carriers: 2013 2013 2012 2011 2010
Endeavar Air-Delta/Northwest Afrlink......... 116,446,600 21.29 9% 113,956,100 120,299,500 101,849,000
American Bagle... .. .o.oveoiooreis e 81,796,913 14.95 87,259,196 84,325,073 75,009,219
Allegiant Air... et e e aee e 57,629,149 10.53 48509000 41,815,000 44,848,000
Skywest-] Uruted Exprcss .......................... 45,878,000 8.39 49,450,000 47,644,000 52,157,100
Expressjet-Delia EXpress............coovevnnnees 21,781,000 398 26,455,100 9,460,000 16,027,000
Charter. ... e e 3,636,484 0.66 5,394 484 4,905,484 5,389,200
COmALr ... oot aes 344300 0.06 1,927,000 34,263,000 11,374,000
Gao Jet... 158,000 0.04 — — —
Mesa All‘]][lCS Umled Express 67,000 0.01 134,000 134,000 67,000
Mesaba-Delta/Northwest A]I']]l’]k — —_— —_— 235,000 9,754 500
Chautauqua-Delta Express. .. — — — 85,098 4,595292
Continental Connection - Commulalr(l),.. — — — — —
Northwest(1).......o..oiiiii e — - — — —
Air Wisconsin{1}............. — — — —_ —
Shuttle America(l)............ . — — — — —
Chicago Express- ATA(L)...... oo — — - —_— —
Atlantic Coast Airlines(1).................cev e — — — — —
SUBLOLAL ... oo e 327,771 446 59.92 333,084,880 343,170,155 321,090,311

Cargo Carriers:

Federal BXPress......oocoveeveevvsvvrvnvnscenens 96,830,000 17.70 91,009,600 83,194,000 83,537,700
Uhnited Parce] Service..............cocooeveen. .. 86,100,000 15.74 86,100,000 85,260,000 86,520,600
IFL GroUp... oo von v et e cev e aee e 15,741,276 2.88 — — —_
Kalitta Charters... .......c.ooieiieien e v, 11,929,880 2,18 957,440 1,187,460 750,000
TSA Jet Arlines......... oo oovvenierersieii s 5,277,960 0.96 —_ —_ —
Lynden Alr Cargo... ......ccoeeiiiiiceen i e 1,705,000 0.31 — - -
C&M Airways, Inc..........ooooocool 735,300 0.13 — — —_
Northern Air Cargo.............oemnieniereenns 694,800 0.13 — 114,000 177,000
Aeronaves T.SM. ... 244250 0.04 —_ — —
Mountain Air Cargo... — — 44,660 17,000 44,660
Kitty Hawk Inc.(1).. — — — — —
ABX Air(l)...... - — — — —
Arrow Cargo(1)........ — —_ — — —
Centurion Air Cargo(1).. — — —_ — —
Evergreen International Ai r]mes(l) — — — — —
Gemini Air Cargo(1}... o — — — -
World Airways(1)... e — — — — —_
CustomAJ.rTransport(l) — — — — -
Aerranspoﬁlntl{l)....“..A.....A..A....,,.,H.. e — - — —
Kalitta AIr{1)....oooen — - — — —_
Alr Cargo Carriers(1)... ... coevivvnveeeni e - — — - -
UPS-Supply Chain Soletions(1)................. — — — e —
Capital Cargo International{1}................... — — - — —
Royal Air Freight{1)..........c. oo vvvervveinvn - — — — —
Subtotal... ... .o e 219,258 466 40.08 178,151,100 169,772,460 176,955,360
Grand Total.......oooo i 547,035,912 100,00 % 511,235,980 512,942 615 492,049,671
Percentage change................ocoo e 7.00% -0.33% 4.25% -5.45%

(1) No lenger serves Fort Wayne International Airport.
(2) Expressed in pounds.
Source: Compiled from airline station manager’s monthly reports.
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

72,662,000 67,116,000 65,014,100 61,899,000 69,513,000 80,887,000
78,882,778 08,087,976 105,730,596 91,725,601 93,301,303 89,112,842
37,748,000 41,924 500 39,483,000 — - —
37,297,600 28,146,000 28,204,000 42,856,000 33,437,000 39,351,000
36,895,000 46,362,000 44,462,000 29,234 000 63,403,000 27,689,000

4,910,520 3,764,336 2,310,580 2,142,180 3,045,000 3,681,056

3,976,100 — 161,000 26,098,000 88,151,000 65,961,000

11,212,000 29,601,000 42,654,000 35,809,000 11,722,000 —

11,599,500 17,043,000 10,488,000 15,304,500 24,567 000 19,821,906
34,718,220 43,667,502 53,547,450 60,871,656 — 11,572,309
21,942,000 37,845,000 20,681,300 20,102,600 19,222,800 17,911,400

- 481,000 —_ — — —

— — —_ — 34,904,500 10,058,000

— — - —_ 9,819,200 30,083,200

— — — — 8,265,000 23,427,000

— — — — — 57,959,176
351,843,118 414,038,314 413,726,026 386,033,537 459,350,803 477,715,783

82,010,000 82,963 000 82,486,000 81,547,000 82982500 82,755,500
86,568,000 96,600,000 95,955,500 101,508,120 95,965,500 95,031,500
17,000 8,500 25,500 — 8,500 17,000

— — 294,015,200 494 552,574 519,577,143 613,005,670

- — 28,300,000 61,818,000 — —

— - — 29,020,000 - -

— — — 28,613,000 — -

— — — 13,680,000 _ —

— — — 11,013,000 — —

— — — 16,104,000 — —

— - — 6,907,000 — -

— — - 3,646,000 - -

— — — 3,085,000 —_ -

— — — 48,700 - —

— — — — 1,857,820 —

— — — - 975,000 —

— — — — 28,660 —
168,595,000 179,571,500 500,782,200 845,542,394 701,395,123 790,809,670
520,438,118 593,609,814 914,508,226 1,231,575,931 1,160,745,926 1,268.525,453

-12.33% -35.09% 25.74% 6.10% -8.50% 5.18%
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Aircraft Operations (3) (5)

Fort Wayne International Airport:

Percent

of Total
Type of Operation 2013 2013 2012 2011 2010
Large Air Carrier (1)................. 17,855 48.5 % 18,181 19,713 18,900
Small Air Carrier (2)..............., --- - - -n -
General Aviation.....ccooveevviinnn 15,908 43.2 18,512 15,786 20,193
MILAIY e cvvsenerereererananciearens 3,082 8.5 3,734 2,859 1,868
Subtotal-International............... 36,845 100.0 40,427 38,358 40,961
Smith Field Airport:
General Aviation{4)................. -- --- -en - ---
Subtotal-Smith Field................. -—- -— - --- -
Total Airport Authority.............. 36,845 100.0 % 40,427 38,358 40,961
Percentage change...............o. -8.86% 5.3%% -6.35% -35.30%

(1) Aircraft that seat, or are capable of seating, 31 or more passengers.
(2) Aircraft that seat, or are capable of seating, more than 9 passengers but less than 31 passenger seats.

(3} An aircraft operation can be either a landing or a take-off.
(4) The Authority no longer reports operations at Smith Fiefd.

(5) Sources: Fort Wayne International Airport FAA Air Traffic Control Tower; Kruse Aviation, Smith Field;

and Smith Field Air Service, Smith Field.
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2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

22,129 23,079 27,360 31,078 34,865 38,649
1,272 2,334 2,367 2,422 2,316 2,158
26,592 39,502 31,963 34,953 37,111 38,881
4,271 4,239 3,861 4,692 4,196 3,657
54,264 69,154 65,551 73,145 78,488 83,345
9,043 9,125 7,141 7,440 11,876 13,249
9,043 9,125 7,141 7,440 11,876 13,249
63,307 78,279 72,692 80,585 90,364 96,594
-19.13% 7.69% -9.79% -10.82% -6.45% 8.72%
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FORT WAYNE-ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY

Fort Wayne International Airport

Scheduled Airline Service
Non-stop Service Service
Carrier Destination Type
Allegiant Air Orlando/Sanford (SFB) Tet (MD-82/83/87/88)
Tampa/St. Petersburg/Clearwater (PTE) Jet (MID-82/83/87/88)
Phoenix/Mesa (AZA) Jet (A319)
Mpyrtle Beach (MYR)- Seasonal Jet (MID-82/83/87/88)
Punta Gorda (PGD) Jet (MD-82/83/87/88)
American Eagle Chicago (ORD) Jet (ERT)
Dallas/Fort Worth (DFW) Jet (ERJ)
Detlta Connection
Endeavor Air Detroit (DTW) Jet (CRI)
Endeavor Air Atlanta (ATL) Jet (CRI)
Endeavor Air Minneapolis (MSP) Jet (CRI)
United Express
Sky West Chicago (ORD) Jet (CRI)
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- Crowe Horwath.

Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath international

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GCVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Fort Wayne — Allen County Airport Authority
Fort Wayne, Indiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Fort Wayne —
Allen County Airport Authority (the “Authority”), a component unit of Allen County, Indiana, which
comprise the statement of net position as of December 31, 2013, and the related statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in fund net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June 2, 2014,

internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, o prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important encugh to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal confrol that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, -
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The resuits of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or cther matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Clﬁo«uc "‘—b“‘ka’h. LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Wayne, Indiana
June 2, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM,
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF
EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors
Fort Wayne — Allen County Airport Authority
Fort Wayne, indiana

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Authority’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
OMB Circufar A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Authority's major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. The Authority’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority's major federal
proegrams based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stales, Local
Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compiiance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2013.



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance reguirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Authority’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in infernal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not aliow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A matferial weakness in infemal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Gur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal confrol over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended December 31,
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which coliectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated June 2, 2014, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Cur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinion on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Crowe e h LLP
Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Wayne, Indiana
June 2, 2014




FORT WAYNE - ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Federal 2013
Federal Grant Description CFDA Number Expenditures

US Department of Transportation
Federal Aviation Administration: Airport Improvement Program (AIP)

3-18-0024-014 20.106 115,650

3-18-0022-060 20.106 387,413

3-18-0022-061 20.106 305,864

3-18-0022-062 20.106 847,428

3-18-0222-063 20.108 1,446,134

Total AIP 3,102,490

Total expenditures of federal awards $ 3,102,490

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards



FORT WAYNE — ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year ended December 31, 2013

1. Basis of Presentation:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal
financial assistance programs received by the Fort Wayne — Allen County Airport Authority (the
“Authority”). The Authority’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the Authority’s financial statements.

2. Basis of Accounting:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards has been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in preparation of the
financial statements.

3. Special Tests and Provisions:
Special tests and provisions for the Airport Improvement Program (AIP) include review of the Authority’s

policy for using airport revenue to determine whether all airport revenue is accounted for and used for the
capital or operating costs of the airport.

{Continued) 8.



FORT WAYNE — ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended December 31, 2013

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmaodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? — Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified not

considered to be material weaknesses? __Yes X None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __ Yes X No
Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified’? Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified not
considered to be material weaknesses?

Yes X None Reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Section .510(a) of
OMB Circular A-1337? Yes X No
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.106 U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration:

Airport Improvement Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X__ Yes No

SECTION 2 — FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THAT ARE REQUIRED TO
BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS.

There were no findings for the year ended December 31, 2013.

SECTICN 3 — FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS INCLUDING AUDIT
FINDINGS AS DEFINED IN OMB CIRCULAR A-133 SECTION 510(a).

There were no findings or questioned costs reported for the year ended December 31, 2013.

SECTICN 4 — SUMMARY OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings or questioned costs reported for the year ended December 31, 2012.



_ Crowe Horwath.
i Crowe Horwath LLLP

independent Member Crowe Herwath International

INDEPENDENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE (PFC) PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AND THE SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY
CHARGES COLLECTED AND EXPENDED

Board of Directors
Fort Wayne — Allen County Airport Authority
Fort Wayne, Indiana

Report on Compliance of Passenger Facility Charges

We have audited the Fort Wayne — Allen County Airport Authority's (the *Authority”) compliance with the
compliance requirements described in the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies,
issued by the Federal Aviation Administration (“Guide”), that could have a direct and material effect on its
passenger facility charge program for the year ended December 31, 2013,

Management’'s Responsibility

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, and regulations, applicable to the passenger facility charge
program. Management of the Airport is also responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws
and regulations applicable to its passenger facility charge program.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Autherity's compliance based on our audit of the types
of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the Guide. Those standards and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonabile assurance about whether non-compliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinien. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Authority's compliance with those requirements.

Opinion on Passenger Facility Charge Program
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred

to above that could have a direct and material effect on its passenger facility charge program for the year
ended December 31, 2013.




Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Authority's internal control over compliance with the requirements
that could have a direct and material effect on the passenger facility charge program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for the passenger facility charge program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal
control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation
Administration. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges

We have audited the financial statements of the Authority as of and for the year ended December 31,
2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic
financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated June 2, 2014 which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on
the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying
schedule of passenger facility charges collected and expended is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as specified in the Guide and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. in our opinion, the schedule of passenger facility charges
collected and expended is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Crowe o h LLP

Crowe Horwath LLP

Fort Wayne, Indiana
June 2, 2014
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FORT WAYNE —ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year ended December 31, 2013

Summary of Auditor's Resulis

We have issued an unmadified opinion, dated June 2, 2014 on the financial statements of Fort Wayne —
Allen County Airport Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Our audit disclosed no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies that are considered to be material
weaknesses in relation to internal control over financial reporting or internal control over the passenger
facility charge program.

Our audit disclosed no instances of non-compliance which are material to Fort Wayne — Allen County
Airport Authority's financial statements.

We have issued an unmodified opinion, dated June 2, 2014 on Fort Wayne — Allen County Airport
Authority's compliance for the passenger facility charge program.

Our audit disclosed no findings required to be reported under the provisions of the Passenger Facility
Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies.

Findings Relating to the Finangial Statements

QOur audit disclosed no findings which are required to be reported in accordance with the Passenger
Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies.

Findings and Questioned Costs for the Passenger Facility Charge Program

Our audit disclosed no findings or questioned costs for passenger facility charge program as defined by
the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies.

11.



FORT WAYNE — ALLEN COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY
SCHERULE OF PRIOR AUDIT PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
FINDINGS AND THEIR RESOLUTICN
Year ended December 31, 2013

The prior year's audit disclosed no findings required to be reported in accordance with the provisions of
the Passenger Facility Charge Audit Guide for Public Agencies.

12.






